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1. Judicial District Eighth Department H

County Clark Judge T. Arthur Ritchie, Jr.

District Ct. Case No. D-13-489542-D

2. Attorney filing this docketing statement:

Attorney Michael Burton, Esq. Telephone 702-565-4335

Firm McFarling Law Group
Address 6230 W. Desert Inn Rd.  

Las Vegas, NV 89146

Client(s) Kevin Adrianzen

If this is a joint statement by multiple appellants, add the names and addresses of other counsel and 
the names of their clients on an additional sheet accompanied by a certification that they concur in the 
filing of this statement.

3. Attorney(s) representing respondents(s):

Client(s) Paige Elizabeth Petit

Address 8540 South Eastern Avenue, Ste. 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123

Firm The Grimes Law Office

Telephone 702-347-4357Attorney Mel Grimes, Esq.

Client(s)

Address
Firm

TelephoneAttorney

(List additional counsel on separate sheet if necessary)



4. Nature of disposition below (check all that apply):
Judgment after bench trial

Other disposition (specify):

ModificationOriginal
Divorce Decree:

Review of agency determination
Grant/Denial of declaratory relief
Grant/Denial of injunction
Grant/Denial of NRCP 60(b) relief
Default judgment
Summary judgment
Judgment after jury verdict

Other (specify):
Failure to prosecute
Failure to state a claim
Lack of jurisdiction

Dismissal:

no trial set

5. Does this appeal raise issues concerning any of the following?

Child Custody
Venue
Termination of parental rights

6. Pending and prior proceedings in this court.  List the case name and docket number  
of all appeals or original proceedings presently or previously pending before this court which 
are related to this appeal:
This matter was the subject of an appeal in the Supreme Court under Case No. 78966 
bearing case caption: Page Petit vs. Kevin Adrianzen.

7. Pending and prior proceedings in other courts.  List the case name, number and  
court of all pending and prior proceedings in other courts which are related to this appeal  
(e.g., bankruptcy, consolidated or bifurcated proceedings) and their dates of disposition:
None.



8. Nature of the action.  Briefly describe the nature of the action and the result below:
This is a post decree action involving child custody and visitation matters. On July 31, 2018, 
Respondent filed a Motion, to modify the parties’ timeshare and on August 23, 2018, 
Appellant filed his Opposition and Countermotion for Modification of Physical Custody to 
Joint physical custody, timeshare & child support. 
 
The Court denied Respondent’s Motion and did not set an evidentiary hearing on Plaintiff’s 
Countermotion for Modification of Physical Custody to Joint physical custody. On February 
28, 2019, Appellant filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the District Court’s Orders. In the 
motion for reconsideration, Appellant raised the issue that the parties’ original custody 
order contains no statutory findings—making it impossible to meet a change in 
circumstances standard when the court never made findings as to why it made its custody 
order in the first place. However, on April 9, 2019, the Court denied Plaintiff’s Motion for 
Reconsideration.  

9. Issues on appeal.  State concisely the principal issue(s) in this appeal (attach separate  
sheets as necessary):
1. Whether the court improperly denied an evidentiary hearing citing "no adequate cause" 
raised, despite numerous serious issues raised. 
 
2. Whether the district court's original divorce decree, which contains no statutorily required 
child custody findings in its determination, now unfairly inhibits Appellant's ability to seek 
custody modification under the "changed circumstances doctrine" as the court's original 
order contains no findings as to how the court reached the current custodial designation and 
timeshare. 
 
3. Whether the court's specific listed examples as to what constitutes "adequate cause" to set 
an evidentiary hearing in a child custody matter are inconsistent with prior Nevada 
precedent.  

10. Pending proceedings in this court raising the same or similar issues.  If you are  
aware of any proceedings presently pending before this court which raises the same or  
similar issues raised in this appeal, list the case name and docket numbers and identify the 
same or similar issue raised:  
None.



11. Constitutional issues.  If this appeal challenges the constitutionality of a statute, and  
the state, any state agency, or any officer or employee thereof is not a party to this appeal,  
have you notified the clerk of this court and the attorney general in accordance with NRAP 44 
and NRS 30.130?

N/A

No
Yes

If not, explain:

12. Other issues.  Does this appeal involve any of the following issues?

Reversal of well-settled Nevada precedent (identify the case(s))
An issue arising under the United States and/or Nevada Constitutions 
A substantial issue of first impression
An issue of public policy
An issue where en banc consideration is necessary to maintain uniformity of this 
court's decisions
A ballot question
If so, explain:



15. Judicial Disqualification.  Do you intend to file a motion to disqualify or have a 
justice recuse him/herself from participation in this appeal?  If so, which Justice?  
No.

Was it a bench or jury trial? N/A

14. Trial.  If this action proceeded to trial, how many days did the trial last?

This matter is assigned to the Court of Appeals pursuant to NRAP 17(b)(5). Appellant does 
not believe the Supreme Court should retain this case.

13. Assignment to the Court of Appeals or retention in the Supreme Court. Briefly 
set forth whether the matter is presumptively retained by the Supreme Court or assigned to 
the Court of Appeals under NRAP 17, and cite the subparagraph(s) of the Rule under which 
the matter falls. If appellant believes that the Supreme Court should retain the case despite 
its presumptive assignment to the Court of Appeals, identify the specific issue(s) or circum-
stance(s) that warrant retaining the case, and include an explanation of their importance or 
significance:



TIMELINESS OF NOTICE OF APPEAL

16. Date of entry of written judgment or order appealed from 02/11/2019 & 05/28/19

If no written judgment or order was filed in the district court, explain the basis for  
seeking appellate review:
N/A

17. Date written notice of entry of judgment or order was served 02/14/19 &05/28/19
Was service by:

Delivery
Mail/electronic/fax

18. If the time for filing the notice of appeal was tolled by a post-judgment motion
(NRCP 50(b), 52(b), or 59) 
  
 (a) Specify the type of motion, the date and method of service of the motion, and 
      the date of filing.

NRCP 50(b)

NRCP 52(b)

NRCP 59

Date of filing

Date of filing

Date of filing

NOTE: Motions made pursuant to NRCP 60 or motions for rehearing or reconsideration may toll the
             time for filing a notice of appeal.  See AA Primo Builders v. Washington, 126 Nev. ____, 245  
 P.3d 1190 (2010).

 (b) Date of entry of written order resolving tolling motion May 28, 2019

 (c) Date written notice of entry of order resolving tolling motion was servedMay 28, 2019
Was service by:

Delivery
Mail



19. Date notice of appeal filed Jun 4, 2019
If more than one party has appealed from the judgment or order, list the date each 
notice of appeal was filed and identify by name the party filing the notice of appeal:
N/A

20. Specify statute or rule governing the time limit for filing the notice of appeal, 
e.g., NRAP 4(a) or other

NRAP 4(a)(1)

SUBSTANTIVE APPEALABILITY

21. Specify the statute or other authority granting this court jurisdiction to review 
the judgment or order appealed from:
(a)

NRAP 3A(b)(1)
NRAP 3A(b)(2)
NRAP 3A(b)(3)
Other (specify)

NRS 38.205
NRS 233B.150
NRS 703.376

(b) Explain how each authority provides a basis for appeal from the judgment or order:
NRAP 3A(b)(1) applies as this is an appeal from a final judgment entered in a civil action 
commenced in the district court in which the judgment was entered.



22. List all parties involved in the action or consolidated actions in the district court: 
      (a) Parties:

Appellant, Kevin Daniel Adrianzen  
Respondent, Paige Elizabeth Petit

      (b) If all parties in the district court are not parties to this appeal, explain in detail why 
 those parties are not involved in this appeal, e.g., formally dismissed, not served, or 
 other:

N/A

23. Give a brief description (3 to 5 words) of each party's separate claims, 
counterclaims, cross-claims, or third-party claims and the date of formal 
disposition of each claim.

Modification of child custody August 23, 2018 
Reconsideration on Motion for Modification of Custody April 9, 2019

24. Did the judgment or order appealed from adjudicate ALL the claims alleged 
below and the rights and liabilities of ALL the parties to the action or consolidated 
actions below?

Yes
No

25. If you answered "No" to question 24, complete the following:
(a) Specify the claims remaining pending below:



(b) Specify the parties remaining below:

(c) Did the district court certify the judgment or order appealed from as a final judgment 
pursuant to NRCP 54(b)?

Yes
No

(d) Did the district court make an express determination, pursuant to NRCP 54(b), that 
there is no just reason for delay and an express direction for the entry of judgment?

No
Yes

26. If you answered "No" to any part of question 25, explain the basis for seeking 
appellate review (e.g., order is independently appealable under NRAP 3A(b)):

27. Attach file-stamped copies of the following documents: 
 The latest-filed complaint, counterclaims, cross-claims, and third-party claims 
 Any tolling motion(s) and order(s) resolving tolling motion(s) 
 Orders of NRCP 41(a) dismissals formally resolving each claim, counterclaims, cross- 

      claims and/or third-party claims asserted in the action or consolidated action below, 
      even if not at issue on appeal 
 Any other order challenged on appeal 
 Notices of entry for each attached order



VERIFICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read this docketing statement, that 
the information provided in this docketing statement is true and complete to the 
best of my knowledge, information and belief, and that I have attached all required
documents to this docketing statement.

Name of appellant
Kevin Daniel Adrianzen

State and county where signed
Nevada, County of Clark

Name of counsel of record
Michael Burton, Esq.

Signature of counsel of record
/s/Michael Burton

Date
07/22/2019

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on the 22nd day of July , 2019 , I served a copy of this
completed docketing statement upon all counsel of record:

By mailing it by first class mail with sufficient postage prepaid to the following 
address(es): (NOTE: If all names and addresses cannot fit below, please list names 
below and attach a separate sheet with the addresses.)

By personally serving it upon him/her; or

Mel Grimes, Esq.  
8540 South Eastern Avenue, Ste. 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123

, 2019day of JulyDated this 22nd

Signature
/s/Maria Rios Landin
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OPPC 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335 phone 

(702) 732-9385 fax 

eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 

 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 

Department: H  

 

 

Date of Hearing:  September 17, 2018 

Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

Oral Argument Requested: ☒Yes ☐ No 

 

PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR 

MODIFICATION OF TIMESHARE SCHEDULE AND 

COUNTERMOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF PHYSICAL CUSTODY 

TO JOINT; HOLIDAY AND VACATION SCHEDULE AND WEEK 

ON/WEEK OFF TIMESHARE, & MODIFICATION OF CHILD SUPPORT  
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby opposes Defendant’s 

Motion and submits his Countermotion requesting the Court issue an Order: 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
8/23/2018 5:09 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and, 

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

This Opposition and Countermotion is made and based on the Memorandum 

of Points and Authorities set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen 

attached hereto, all papers and pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by 

counsel, if any, at the hearing.  

DATED this 23rd day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Mom’s motion seeks to cut Dad’s already limited time—despite Mom’s 

significant history of poor co-parenting and lack of respect for Dad’s role in Ryder’s 

life. Dad has another child whom he has joint physical custody of and it is in Ryder’s 

best interest to have a more equal custodial schedule with both of his parents.  

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

A. History of the Parties 

 Plaintiff Kevin Adrianzen (“Dad”) and Defendant Paige Petit (“Mom”) 

divorced in 2014. They have one child together: Ryder, aged 4.1  

 The parties were unable to agree to custody terms in their original divorce and 

ultimately had an evidentiary hearing in June 2014.  

 After the evidentiary hearing, the Court made the following relevant findings 

and orders: 

1. Court did not find any acts of domestic violence; 

2. There is a level of conflict between the parties and the 

grandparents, which is a negative factor for the child; 

3. Disputes are not handled in a mature way; 

                                                 

1 Ryder was born September 22, 2013, thus is almost 5.  
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4. Mom is designated as primary physical custodian, with Dad’s 

visitation after Ryder’s first birthday being weekly, Saturday 

6:00 p.m. to Monday at 6:00 p.m.2 ; and  

5. The parties have joint legal custody.  

The Court made no specific best interest findings as to why it awarded Mom 

primary physical custody or why it set the visitation schedule that it did.   

B. Mom Regularly Violates Dad’s Joint Legal Custody Rights 

 In the four years since the Court’s last order, there have been numerous co-

parenting issues and continuing conflict.  

 Mom violates Dad’s joint legal custody rights regularly. In March 2018, Dad 

deposed Mom in a separate case. 3  During that deposition, Mom acknowledged 

numerous medical and dental appointments that she unilaterally took Ryder to—

without informing Dad. 

· Q.· ·Who is Ryder's doctor? 

A.· ·It's Dr. Dani.· It's D-a-n-i, at Health Care Pediatrics. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·When's the last time he's seen Dr. Dani? 

· · · ·  A.· ·It was -- it was late last year.· I believe it was about October. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·What was that for? 

· · ·   ·A.· ·The flu shot. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 

A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about that appointment? 
                                                 

2 The court escalated the visitation at Ryder’s first birthday, acknowledging his age and time 

spent with Mom at that point.  
3 Paige was a witness in a separate case involving Kevin and his other child’s mother, case # D-

17-557607-C.  
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· · ·   ·A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Do you remember the last time he saw Dr. Dani before that? 

·· · · ·  A.· ·For his four-year checkup in September. 

·· · · ·  ·· · · ·Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 

· · ·          ·A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Did Kevin know about that appointment? 

· · · ·  A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·I promise I'm not going to do this for his whole life, but what was 

his last appointment before the four-year checkup with Dr. Dani? 

· · · ·  A.· ·I believe it was his three-year checkup. I don't believe he went back 

for anything.· I'm not sure. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 

· · ·   A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about that appointment? 

· · · ·  A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Over the last two years, has he seen -- aside from dentists, which 

I'll ask you about in a minute, has he seen any other doctors besides Dr. Dani? 

· ·   A.· ·No. 

Q.· ·Has he seen -- 

· · ·  · A.· ·Sorry.· He's seen, like, another pediatrician within the same health 

practice when -- 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Was it one of the appointments that you talked about? 

· · · ·  A.· ·No.· It was for like a sick visit when Dr. Dani was not in office. 

·· · · ·  Q.· ·Do you remember when that was? 

·· · · ·  A.· ·It was probably back in maybe 2016. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·What was wrong? 

· · · ·  A.· ·He had -- I believe it was for a rash that he had.· I'm not completely 

sure. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·You think it was a rash, though? 

· · · ·  A.· ·I think so.· I think that, yeah. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 

· · · ·  A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about that appointment? 

· · · ·  A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Does Ryder see a dentist? 

· · · ·  A.· ·Yes. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·When is the last time he went there? 

· · · ·  A.· ·He went -- I believe it was last month, February, for a checkup. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin present at that appointment? 
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· · · ·  A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about it? 

· · · ·  A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·When's the last time he was at the dentist before that? 

· · · ·  A.· ·It was last year.· It was -- I think it was late last year.· I don't 

remember what month it was, though.· Probably around October. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Any issues at that appointment? 

· · · ·  A.· ·Yeah.· At that one he had his cavity filled. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Just one? 

· · · ·  A.· ·It was two, I believe. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Was Kevin at that appointment? 

· · · ·  A.· ·No. 

· · · ·  Q.· ·Did he know about that appointment? 

· · · ·  A.· ·No. 
· 

 In the last four years, Mom has told Dad about one doctor’s appointment for 

Ryder, and it was on her way out of the door.  

C. Mom’s House, Boyfriend, and Lack of Co-Parenting 

 Mom lives with her current boyfriend with whom she has two children with. 

Dad believes, and Mom confirmed during her deposition, that Mom’s boyfriend has 

a criminal record that includes at least two drug charges, a DUI in California, and an 

open DUI case in Nevada (also driving without a license).4 Dad believes Mom is 

living in a two-bedroom apartment with her boyfriend, their two children, and 

Ryder— five people total. Ryder has said things to Dad that make him think Mom’s 

boyfriend has been physically abusive to Ryder—although Kevin cannot prove it.   

                                                 

4 Case # 17M10033X. 
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 Kevin also has concerns over Mom’s care for Ryder. Dad noticed Ryder had 

cavities, which he did not feel a child so young should have. One of Ryder’s fillings 

then fell out and Dad had to tell Mom because again, she did not notice. Dad 

contacted Mom to inform her and ask for Ryder’s dentist information, so he could 

take him to the dentist. Mom never responded.  

 It is possible Mom did not respond because she blocked Dad’s number on her 

phone, something she has done before; and proudly told him that she has done. Mom 

has also told Dad that she purposely does not respond to certain messages.  

 When Ryder was three-years-old, Mom was involved in a car accident with 

Ryder, which required him to go to the hospital. Mom never told Dad. Dad found 

out from Ryder and asked Mom for the medical records and accident report. Mom 

provided partial medical records, but enough for Dad to see that Mom was using 

only her last name on Ryder’s insurance and hospital records, despite the court 

ordering a hyphenated last name for Ryder. No police report was ever provided to 

Dad. 

 Prior to Mom’s current living situation, she lived with her parents until they 

divorced.  Mom then lived in Summerlin with her boyfriend at his father’s residence 

for one year. Mom would never provide the address of her boyfriend’s father’s 

residence to Dad. For the first year thereafter, Mom refused to tell Dad where she 

(Ryder) lived.  
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 Around this time,  Dad learned from Ryder that there was a babysitter 

watching him—which surprised Dad as Mom did not work. Dad asked Mom who 

was watching Ryder. Mom never responded. Mom later confirmed during her 

deposition that she was in fact working. 

 Dad has had concerns, for over two years, over speech issues with Ryder and 

expressed these concerns to Mom and his desire to have an evaluation done. Mom 

ignored.  

 On numerous occasions Dad has asked Mom about injuries on Ryder. Mom 

never responds.  

 Mom was forced to respond on one occasion however (after Dad had been 

informing Mom about it for two weeks with no response from Mom):   Ryder showed 

up at Dad’s house with scabies—which required both homes be treated for 

infestation.  

 On occasion, Mom has sent medication for Ryder with no instructions as to 

how to administer— or even what it is for.  

 Mom has refused to be flexible and allow Dad any additional time with Ryder. 

This includes for parties, family events, family birthdays, brief vacations, or any 

other father/son experiences Dad would try to plan that occurred outside his set time. 

Mom’s position is she will not do anything the court has not ordered her to do.  



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

7 
 

 Mom has verbally degraded (and hit) Dad at exchanges— in front of Ryder; 

and routinely shoves cameras in his or his family members’ faces at exchanges. On 

one occasion Mom hit Dad with her phone while she was recording him because 

Dad was trying to talk to Mom because he was unable to text her as she had blocked 

his number.  

 Dad had his Mother do the exchanges, hoping that would help. It did not. Mom 

tried running Grandma over at one exchange, while Ryder was in the car with 

Grandma—prompting Grandma to call the police.  Thereafter Mom unilaterally 

decided Grandma (Dad’s Mom) could no longer do the exchanges regardless of what 

the Judge had advised in court. 

 Dad contacted Mom about putting Ryder in swimming lessons. Mom’s 

response: she had already put him in swimming lessons at a swimming academy but 

never told Dad and never offered Dad to come.  

 Very recently, Ryder had his first day of kindergarten. This occurred on Dad’s 

timeshare. Understandably, Mom expressed a desire to be at this milestone moment. 

Also, understandably, Dad was reluctant because of the non-stop drama around the 

parties’ exchanges, but did not stop Mom from being present for the event. 

 Prior to going into his classroom, Ryder posed for a photo. Dad stepped back 

and allowed Mom to go first. Mom got a photo of Ryder, which takes time as he is 

only four-years-old. Just as Mom finished, Ryder’s teacher called him into the 
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classroom—meaning Dad did not get to take a photo. Dad asked Mom if she could 

send him the photo she had taken. Mom refused. Mom’s reason? Dad’s Mom never 

gave her photos and videos taken during Ryder’s birth, almost five years prior. 

Kevin has tried to explain that those photos are his mother’s and he has no control 

over them. Court mediators from both Family Court and Nevada Supreme Court 

have also explained the same to Mom. 

 Mom still refuses to share the photo with Dad.  

D. Changes in Dad’s Life Since 2014 

Dad has always worked blue-collar jobs, until a motorcycle accident in May 

2016. This accident left Dad with many permanent physical injuries. Because of this 

accident, Dad had surgery and physical therapy for approximately six months, being 

on FMLA during this time.  

After returning to work, Dad was not able to perform the same tasks as before. 

Dad ended up being laid off in June 2017. Dad received unemployment insurance 

through January 2018. Dad searched for employment during this time but was not 

successful. Recently, Dad started a job as a carpenter apprentice. Unfortunately, this 

job did not work out as Dad’s physical limitations from injury caused him to fail to 

pass the minimum skills test for the job. Dad is currently enrolled at College of 

Southern Nevada with the goal of finding a white-collar career he can physically 

handle. Dad is still seeking part-time employment while in school.  
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But it has not all been bleak for Dad during this period. In January 2015, Dad’s 

daughter Raelynn was born. Dad currently has joint physical custody of Raelynn, 

with a week on/week off timeshare.  

 This opposition and countermotion follows. 

III. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. The Court Should Deny Mom’s Motion and Grant Dad’s 

Countermotion to Modify Custody 

 When the court considers modifying a primary physical custody order, the 

court must use a two-step process.5 First, the court must determine if there has been 

a substantial change in circumstances affecting the welfare of the child since the last 

custodial order.6 If there has, the court must then consider whether modification of 

custody serves the child’s best interest.7 The moving party has the burden of proof 

under both prongs.8 

The specific findings the court must make when considering a child’s best 

interest under NRS 125C.0035(4) are as follows: 

(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity 

to form an intelligent preference as to his or her physical custody. 

(b) Any nomination of a guardian for the child by a parent. 

(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent 

associations and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. 

                                                 

5 Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. 145, 150 (2007). 
6 Id.  
7 Id.  
8 Id.  
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(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 

(e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the 

child. 

(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 

(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 

(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 

(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. 

(j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of 

the child. 

(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 

has engaged in an act of domestic violence against the child, a parent 

of the child or any other person residing with the child. 

(l) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 

has committed any act of abduction against the child or any other child. 

 

Here, there has been a substantial change in circumstances since the last 

custodial order, and modifying custody is in Ryder’s best interest. 

1. There has been a substantial change in circumstances. 

 First, Mom acknowledges in her Motion that there has been a substantial 

change in circumstances since the parties’ last custodial order—citing her own 

engagement and blended family. Dad has those same circumstances, plus more.  

 In addition to the change in Dad’s work schedule and his daughter of whom 

he has joint physical custody, Mom’s actions since the last custodial order are a 

sufficient change in circumstances affecting Ryder’s welfare.  

 Mom’s complete lack of co-parenting with Dad since the last custodial order 

is alarming. Mom will not even share a photo she took of Ryder on his first day of 
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school with Dad. This would take less than 5 seconds via text. Mom refuses, citing 

a five-year-old axe she is grinding with Dad’s Mother.  

 Mom does not tell Dad about doctors’ appointments. Mom does not tell Dad 

about dentist appointments. Mom blocks Dad’s phone number. Mom is cohabitating 

with a probable substance abuser in tight quarters. Mom refuses to allow Dad any 

additional time, no matter what the reason for Dad’s request.  Mom moves without 

informing Dad or giving him the addresses.  Mom also takes Ryder out of state 

without informing Dad. 

 Mom enrolled Ryder in school, to begin kindergarten this school year, without 

even discussing with Dad.  And she has placed Ryder on a wait list for a charter 

school without discussing with Dad.   

 Right now, Dad has two days a week of visitation. Mom’s request is for Dad 

to have three days per week— but only on the first, third, and fifth weeks. This 

means that in most months, Dad’s timeshare would go from 8 days a month, to six. 

And not that Ryder has started kindergarten, this change would not allow Dad to 

substantially participate in Ryder’s education. Considering Mom’s history, her 

request is not surprising.  

 Based on the foregoing, there are numerous substantial changes of 

circumstances affecting Ryder’s welfare since the last custodial order.   
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2. It is in Ryder’s Best Interest for the Parties to Share Joint 

Physical Custody 

A review of the statutory best interest factors is as follows: 

(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity 

to form an intelligent preference as to his or her physical custody. 

 

This factor is not applicable. 

 

(b) Any nomination of a guardian for the child by a parent. 

 

This factor is not applicable. 

 

(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent 

associations and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. 

 

This factor favors Dad. Mom has been given a chance and her performance is 

abysmal. She admitted in her deposition she refuses to allow Dad any more time 

than the court has ordered.  Mom blocks Dad’s phone number. Mom refuses to co-

parent.  

(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 

 

This factor favors Dad. The parties are high conflict. Mom shoves a camera 

in Dad’s face during exchanges, literally— right in his face.  Mom has also hit Dad 

with her phone in front of Ryder. Documenting exchanges is one thing, but 

antagonizing is another.  

 

(e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the 

child. 
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This factor favors Dad. Mom refuses to cooperate. Mom admits she does not 

tell Dad about doctors’ or dentists’ appointments. Mom does not tell Dad about 

extracurricular activities in which she enrolls Ryder.  Yet Dad has informed Mom 

when he signed Ryder up for indoor soccer and private swimming lessons. 

(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 

 

This factor is neutral.  

 

(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 

 

This factor favors Dad. Mom refused to consider a speech evaluation for 

Ryder. Mom places her conflict with Dad above Ryder’s needs.  

(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 

 

This factor is neutral. Both parents have a good relationship with Ryder.  

 

(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. 

 

Both parents have other children. Currently this factor only favors Mom 

as her other children are with Ryder five days a week vs. two days a week, 

every other week,  with Dad’s other daughter.  And Ryder’s time with his 

sister would be less if Mom’s visitation modification request is granted. 

(j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of 

the child. 

This factor is not applicable.  

 

(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 

has engaged in an act of domestic violence against the child, a parent 

of the child or any other person residing with the child. 
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This factor is not applicable.  

 

(l) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 

has committed any act of abduction against the child or any other child. 

 

This factor is not applicable.  

 

Based on the foregoing, Dad requests this court modify custody to joint 

physical custody, with a week on/week off timeshare that matches Dad’s other 

custodial timeshare, which has exchanges on Friday.  Dad also requests Dept. B’s 

holiday and vacation schedule that also matches Dad’s other custodial schedule. 

B. The Court Should Modify Child Support 

 Parents have a duty to support their children by providing necessary 

maintenance, health care, education, and support.9 A parent with physical custody is 

entitled to recovery of financial support from the non-custodial parent.10 Nevada law 

sets child support for one minor child at 18% of the parent’s gross monthly income.11 

When parties have joint physical custody, child support is calculated by 

determining each party’s statutory percentage based on their respective gross 

monthly incomes; and then subtract the difference between the two with the higher 

income earner paying the lower income earner the difference.12  

                                                 

9 NRS 125B.020. 
10 NRS 125B.030. 
11 NRS 125B.070. 

12 Wright v. Osburn, 114 Nev. 1367, 1369 (Nev. 1998).  
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NRS 125B.080(9)13 contains factors a court must consider when adjusting an 

obligor’s child support from the statutory formula. NRS 125B.080(2) also requires 

any specific agreement between parties that is not consistent with the statutory 

formula state sufficient facts in accordance with subsection 9 to justify deviation 

from the statutory formula. 

Here, both parties are unemployed. Mom lives with her boyfriend, who 

supports her. And Dad lives with his Mother while he attends school. Based on their 

respective gross monthly incomes, Dad’s child support obligation should be 

$100.00; and Mom’s child support obligation should be $100.00. Therefore, under 

Wright, if the court orders joint physical custody, child support should be set at zero. 

                                                 

13 NRS 125B.080(9) The court shall consider the following factors when adjusting the amount of 

support of a child upon specific findings of fact: 

      (a) The cost of health insurance; 

      (b) The cost of child care; 

      (c) Any special educational needs of the child; 

      (d) The age of the child; 

      (e) The legal responsibility of the parents for the support of others; 

      (f) The value of services contributed by either parent; 

      (g) Any public assistance paid to support the child; 

      (h) Any expenses reasonably related to the mother’s pregnancy and confinement; 

      (i) The cost of transportation of the child to and from visitation if the custodial parent moved 

with the child from the jurisdiction of the court which ordered the support and the noncustodial 

parent remained; 

      (j) The amount of time the child spends with each parent; 

      (k) Any other necessary expenses for the benefit of the child; and 

      (l) The relative income of both parents. 
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And even if the court does not award joint physical custody, Dads child support 

should be set at $100.00.  

C. The Court Must Deny Mom’s Request for Attorney’s Fees 

 The court may award attorney fees to a prevailing party; or when the court 

finds a party has brought a claim or maintained a defense without reasonable grounds 

or to harass the opposing party.14 The court shall liberally construe this provision in 

favor of awarding attorney’s fees in appropriate situations.15       

When deciding attorney’s fees awards in family law matters, four 

requirements were set forth16: 1) counsel must cite a legal basis for attorney’s fees; 

2) the Court must evaluate the Brunzell17 factors; 3) the Court must consider any 

disparity in income of the parties under Wright 18 ; and 4) the request must be 

supported by affidavit or other evidence.  

The court has authority in custody actions to order reasonable attorney’s fees 

in proportions and at times determined by the court.19  

                                                 

14 NRS 18.010(2)(a)-(b).  
15 Id.  
16 Miller v. Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 (2005). 
17 Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat’l Bank, 85 Nev. 345 (1969). 
18 Wright v. Osburn, 114 Nev. 1367, 1370 (1998). 
19 NRS 125C.250. 
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All financial requests, including attorney’s fees, require the requesting party 

file a financial disclosure form within 2 judicial days of filing their motion or 

countermotion.20 

Here, the court must deny Mom’s request for attorney’s fees as she failed to 

file a financial disclosure form; and also, because it is meritless.  

Mom asserts she has “on numerous occasions, Defendant and her counsel 

have discussed this matter with the Defendant and his counsel including multiple 

offers of settlement which have been accepted and then subsequently rejected.” This 

is not true. Dad has attempted to discuss and work out a different custody 

arrangement with Mom and she ignores and does not respond to him. 

Dad is willing to waive all objections to confidential settlement negotiations 

being introduced to this Court and allow Mom to present any written settlement 

communications in this case, including written offers. There are none. And there are 

certainly no acceptances of offers which were later rejected. This is a fabrication.  

The court must therefore deny Mom’s request for attorney’s fees.  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

                                                 

20 EDCR 5.506(2).  
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IV. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Kevin Adrianzen requests this Court issue 

an Order: 

1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and, 

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

DATED this 23rd day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 23rd day of August, 2018, served a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s 

Opposition To Defendant’s Motion For Modification Of Timeshare Schedule And 

Countermotion For Modification Of Physical Custody To Joint; Holiday And 

Vacation Schedule And Week On/Week Off Timeshare And For Attorney’s Fees 

And Costs : 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 

melg@grimes-law.com 

olivian@grimes-law.com 

 

/s/ Crystal Beville 

Crystal Beville 
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SUPPL 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335 phone 

(702) 732-9385 fax 

eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 

 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 

Department: H  

 

 

Date of Hearing:  September 17, 2018 

Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

Oral Argument Requested: ☒Yes ☐ No 

 

SUPPLEMENT TO PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S 

MOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF TIMESHARE SCHEDULE AND 

COUNTERMOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF PHYSICAL CUSTODY 

TO JOINT; HOLIDAY AND VACATION SCHEDULE AND WEEK 

ON/WEEK OFF TIMESHARE, & MODIFICATION OF CHILD SUPPORT  
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby opposes Defendant’s 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
8/30/2018 12:32 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Motion and submits his Supplement to his Opposition and Countermotion requesting 

the Court issue an Order: 

1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and, 

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

This Opposition and Countermotion is made and based on the Memorandum 

of Points and Authorities set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen 

attached hereto, all papers and pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by 

counsel, if any, at the hearing.  

DATED this 30th day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Mom is cohabitating and engaged to a serious drug addict. Mom has allowed 

this individual to be around the parties’ son. Mom’s home is not suitable for her to 

have primary physical custody.  

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

 Plaintiff Kevin Adrianzen (“Dad”) and Defendant Paige Petit (“Mom”) 

divorced in 2014. They have one child together: Ryder, aged 4.1  

 Mom’s Motion states “Since the decree of divorce was issued, the Defendant 

[Mom] become engaged [sic] and two children have been born to that relationship. 

Defendant [Mom] wishes to create a healthy environment of a nuclear family for the 

minor child and the child’s half-siblings while not denying Plaintiff [Dad] time with 

his child.” Mom also states: “The goal of the proposed timeshare is to create a stable 

and nurturing family environment for the minor child by reserving approximately 

half of his weekend time for binding with his new family.” The fiancé Mom is 

referring to is Shawn Prisco.    

Dad filed his Opposition and Countermotion to Paige’s Motion to Modify 

timeshare on August 23, 2018. In Dad’s Opposition and Countermotion, he raised 

                                                 

1 Ryder was born September 22, 2013, thus is almost 5.  
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concerns over Shawn and substance abuse by him. At the time of filing, Dad was 

still amassing supporting documentation.  

 During Mom’s deposition on March 19, 2018, Mom was asked about her 

fiancé, Shawn Prisco, and his criminal history: 

Q.· ·Do you know if Shawn has ever been arrested before? 

 · ·  A.· ·Yes. 

Q.· ·What for? 

A.· ·Possession of marijuana. 

Q.· ·Anything else that you're aware of? 

A.· ·No. 

Q.· ·How many times? 

A.· ·Twice. 

Q.· ·Twice that you're aware of? 

A.· ·Yes. 

·  Q.· ·Those are the only two arrests that you're aware of?· 

A.· ·I believe there's one in California.·I'm not sure. 

·  Q.· ·For what? 

A.· ·I think it was a DUI.·I'm not sure, though. 

·  Q.· ·Do you know if Shawn has ever been to rehabilitation for drugs 

or alcohol? 

A.· ·No, I'm not sure. 

·  Q.· ·Not sure?· So he may have been, but you're not aware? 

A.· ·Yes. 

  

 Either Mom was lying, or she has no idea who she is engaged to, has two 

children with, and allows around Ryder.  

 Shawn has a serious and recent history with hard drugs. In May 2017, Shawn 

was arrested for possession of drug paraphernalia and resisting arrest/obstructing a 
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police officer. While these charges alone are troubling, the facts surrounding them 

are even more so.2  

 According to the officer’s report, on May 5, 2017 around 7:00 p.m. the police 

were called to the area of 1575 Warm Springs Road in Henderson Nevada with 

reports that a male was “asking people for drugs.” The suspect was described as 

“thin” and with “black pants with holes in them.” He was later identified as Shawn 

Prisco.  

 The police approached Shawn to talk to him, but Shawn walked away, and 

continued to walk away despite the officer saying he needed to speak to him; and 

Shawn being advised by the officer that if he did not comply, the officer would use 

force.  The officer ended up using force and placing Shawn in handcuffs.  

 The officer searched Shawn and found a “clear glass pipe with a broken end, 

tinfoil, and burnt residue, lighter, and miscellaneous pill wrapped in paper towel.” 

Based on the officer’s training and experience, he identified all the paraphernalia as 

the type used to smoke heroin of methamphetamine. The officer suspected at least 

one of the pills was Xanax. 

                                                 

2 See Henderson Municipal Court Docket Sheet, criminal records, and criminal pleadings listed 

as Exhibit 3.  
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 The case just concluded in May 2018, with Shawn getting 60 days in jail 

(suspended), and court ordered rehabilitation of a minimum of 24 weeks. Basically, 

Shawn is right now (or should be) in a rehabilitation program. 

 The above event is not an isolated incident of substance abuse by Shawn. In 

2016 Shawn was charged with driving under the influence in California, as well as 

carrying a concealed “dirk or dagger.” According to California penal code, a “dirk 

or dagger” is defined as: 

1. a knife or other instrument, 

2. with or without a hand guard, 

3. that is capable of ready use as a stabbing weapon, and 

4. that may inflict a significant or substantial physical injury or death.3 

 

As if this all was not enough, Shawn’s May 2017 brush with the law brought 

on by him randomly soliciting strangers for drugs was not rock-bottom. In April of 

this year (2018), Shawn was again charged with driving under the influence (drugs) 

and driving on a revoked license. Shawn was charged as first offense, with Nevada 

apparently not knowing about the prior California charge. On this DUI, Shawn was 

under the influence of THC and alprazolam (Xanax)— the same pills found on him 

a year earlier. This case just concluded on August 22, 2018.  

                                                 

3 California Penal Code 16470.  
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None of these are new developments. On June 11, 2016, Shawn Prisco’s 

mother took to Facebook to plea to anyone who would listen about Shawn’s drug 

problems.4 The post states: 

I am Shawn Priscos mother. My son is a drug addict spiraling out of control. 

Shawn lies, steals, cheats, and does whatever he can do to feed his addiction. 

I’m reaching out to all that know Shawn and am asking to all not support his 

addiction or be the one that gives him 20 bucks so he can buy drugs that kill 

him. Shawn has an open door to return to Rehab for the help he needs.  We 

have recently learned that Shawn is going to be a father but not if he 

continues on this path of destruction. . .  

 

She further states that this post is very hard for her, but she is very concerned 

about those unknowingly feeding her son’s addiction.  

This post came at a time when Shawn was living with Mom [Defendant], 

Mom was pregnant with their first child, and Mom had primary custody of Ryder.  

In fact, only two weeks prior to this post by Shawn’s mother, Shawn posted 

photos of a “road trip” he took to Pismo Beach.5 His post includes a photo of Shawn 

going into the ocean— with Ryder.  

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

                                                 

4 See Facebook Post of Jaime Schemp listed as Exhibit 2.  
5 See Facebook post by Shawn listed as Exhibit 1.  
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According to Mom’s deposition, as far as she knows, Shawn has never sought 

rehab. And Mom’s motion wishes to preserve this “nuclear” family for Ryder.  

 This opposition and countermotion follows. 

III. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. The Court Should Modify Custody to Joint Physical Custody 

 When the court considers modifying a primary physical custody order, the 

court must use a two-step process.6 First, the court must determine if there has been 

a substantial change in circumstances affecting the welfare of the child since the last 

custodial order.7 If there has, the court must then consider whether modification of 

custody serves the child’s best interest.8 The moving party has the burden of proof 

under both prongs.9 

The specific findings the court must make when considering a child’s best 

interest under NRS 125C.0035(4) are as follows: 

(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity 

to form an intelligent preference as to his or her physical custody. 

(b) Any nomination of a guardian for the child by a parent. 

(c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent 

associations and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. 

(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 

(e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the 

child. 

(f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 

                                                 

6 Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. 145, 150 (2007). 
7 Id.  
8 Id.  
9 Id.  
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(g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 

(h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 

(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. 

(j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of 

the child. 

(k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 

has engaged in an act of domestic violence against the child, a parent 

of the child or any other person residing with the child. 

(l) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody 

has committed any act of abduction against the child or any other child. 

 

Here, as relates to the specific facts in this Supplement, there has been a 

substantial change in circumstances since the last custodial order, and modifying 

custody is in Ryder’s best interest. 

1. There has been a substantial change in circumstances. 

 As relates to the specific facts of this Supplement, since the last custodial order, 

Mom has cohabitated with, become engaged to, and had two children with someone 

who has obvious and serious drug issues. This is not a guy who dabbles in marijuana 

on the weekends. His addiction is so severe that the police were summoned because 

he was harassing complete strangers for drugs. The pipe and other materials found 

on Shawn were consistent with those used for heroin or methamphetamine. Shawn 

also has a pocket full of random pills.  

 At the same time that Shawn’s mother was taking to Facebook to plea to 

anyone who would listen about her out-of-control drug addict son, Mom [Defendant] 

was allowing Shawn to take Ryder to Pismo Beach and into the ocean.   
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 Based on the foregoing, in addition to the other changes in circumstances in 

Dad’s original Opposition and Countermotion, the facts contained in this 

Supplement alone are a sufficient change since the last custodial order to warrant an 

evidentiary hearing.   

2. It is in Ryder’s Best Interest for the Parties to Share Joint 

Physical Custody 

In making a child custody determination, the sole consideration of the court 

is the best interest of the child.10 This is not achieved simply by processing the case 

through the factors that § 125.480(4) [125C.0035(4)] 11  identifies as potentially 

relevant to a child’s best interest and announcing a ruling.12 As the lead-in language 

to § 125C.0035(4) suggests, the list of factors in § 125C.0035(4) is non-exhaustive. 

In determining the best interest of a child, courts should look to the factors set forth 

in § 125.480(4) [125C.0035(4)] as well as any other relevant considerations.13 Other 

factors, beyond those enumerated in § 125.480(4) [125C.0035(4)], may merit 

consideration.14 

                                                 

10 NRS 125.0035(1). 
11 Statute has since been moved to NRS 125C.0035(4).  
12 Davis v. Ewalefo, 131 Nev. Advance Opinion 46 (2015).  
13 Id. 
14 Id. 
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Dad did a full statutory best interest analysis in his Opposition and 

Countermotion. But, as relates to the facts in this Supplement, common sense best 

interest factors come into play.  

Mom is allowing Shawn Prisco to live in a home shared by Ryder. The 

information about Shawn presented in this Supplement is only what we currently 

know. Mom is not being forthcoming, lying in her deposition. Shawn does not have 

one or two marijuana charges in his past, as mom asserts. He is a drug addict-- 

begging for drugs in the streets. His mother is pleading to the world to help her son. 

Shawn has at least two DUI’s, shielding the California one from Nevada.  

People who get DUI’s often drive dozens of times under the influence before 

arrest.15 This is the guy Mom is allowing around Ryder. This is the guy Mom has 

chosen to move into Ryder’s home. This is the guy Mom has chosen to get married 

to. This is the guy Mom has chosen to have two children with. This is remarkably 

poor judgment on Mom’s part.   

Based on the foregoing, the court should modify custody to at least joint 

custody as Ryder’s primary household is not suitable.  

                                                 

15 https://www.dosomething.org/us/facts/11-facts-about-driving-under-influence.  
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IV. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Kevin Adrianzen requests this Court issue 

an Order: 

1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and, 

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

DATED this 30th day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 30th day of August, 2018, served a true and correct copy of Supplement to 

Plaintiff’s Opposition To Defendant’s Motion For Modification Of Timeshare 

Schedule And Countermotion For Modification Of Physical Custody To Joint; 

Holiday And Vacation Schedule And Week On/Week Off Timeshare And For 

Attorney’s Fees And Costs : 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 

melg@grimes-law.com 

olivian@grimes-law.com 

 

/s/ Crystal Beville 

Crystal Beville 

 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

 

1 OF 3 
 

EXHS 
Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335 phone 
(702) 732-9385 fax 
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 
Department: H 

 
 

 
PLAINTIFF’S EXHIBIT APPENDIX 

 
COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby submits the following 

exhibits in support of his Supplement to Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for 

Modification of Timeshare Schedule and Countermotion for Modification of 

Physical Custody to Join; Holiday and Vacation Schedule and Week On/Week Off 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
8/30/2018 12:32 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Timeshare, & Modification of Child Support.  Plaintiff understands that these are 

not considered substantive evidence in my case until formally admitted into evidence.  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 EXHIBIT 1:  Shawn Masonry Facebook post dated May 26, 2016 with 

photos of Shawn Prisco and minor child on Pismo Beach, California trip. 

 EXHIBIT 2: Jaime Schemp Facebook post dated June 11, 2016 re: son 

Shawn Prisco’s drug addiction. 

 EXHIBIT 3: Henderson Municipal Court Docket Sheet, criminal 

records and criminal pleadings. 

DATED this 30th day of August, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 
 
/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 
Nevada Bar Number 14351 
6230 W. Desert Inn Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
(702) 565-4335  
Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Kevin Adrianzen 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 30th day of August, 2018, served a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s Exhibit 

Appendix : 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 
melg@grimes-law.com 
olivian@grimes-law.com 

 
/s/ Crystal Beville 

Crystal Beville 
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RPLY 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335 phone 

(702) 732-9385 fax 

eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 

 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 

Department: H  

 

 

Date of Hearing:  September 17, 2018 

Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

 

 

PLAINTIFF’S REPLY TO DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO 

COUNTERMOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF PHYSICAL CUSTODY 

TO JOINT; HOLIDAY AND VACATION SCHEDULE AND WEEK 

ON/WEEK OFF TIMESHARE, & MODIFICATION OF CHILD SUPPORT 
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby submits the following 

reply to Defendant’s Opposition requesting the Court issue an Order: 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
9/14/2018 1:54 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2.  Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare; 

3.  Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B; 

4.  Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and,  

5. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

This Reply is made and based on the Memorandum of Points and Authorities 

set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen attached hereto, all papers and 

pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by counsel, if any, at the hearing.  

DATED this 14th day of September, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Paige’s Opposition to Kevin’s countermotion glosses over numerous critical 

facts without explanation—such as how she was allegedly unaware of her fianceés 

extensive and recent drug issues, including jail time. His family is posting online 

that he needs help, yet she claims ignorance. This is not believable, and the issue is 

not moot and fixed as she claims in her Opposition.  

Paige is residing (with Ryder) with a serious drug addict and criminal. A drug 

addict and criminal who gave drugs to another individual, requiring hospitalization. 

Paige fails to co-parent. Paige begins her Opposition by re-hashing her previously 

dismissed claims that she is a victim of domestic violence at the hands of Kevin; and 

that any failure of co-parenting by her is because she “withdraws” around Kevin.  

Bottom line, Paige is not credible.  

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS & ARGUMENT 

A. Prisco’s Drug and Criminal History & Paige’s Assertion that this 

is All News to Her 

 Kevin incorporates his prior facts and legal argument contained in his 

Opposition and Countermotion and adds the following:  

In Paige’s Opposition she states: 

Prior to Plaintiff’s supplement, Defendant was only aware of a DUI and 

possession of marijuana. This is not, as presented by Plaintiff, a 
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demonstration of lying but rather lack of information. Regardless, this is not 

an ongoing concern as Defendant’s fianceé’ has received substance abuse 

counselling and has abstained from the use of any illicit substances. 

 

As stated in Kevin’s motion, Paige is either: 1) lying about not knowing; or 

2) completely ignorant of who she is cohabitating with, having children with, and 

allowing to live in the same home as Ryder. 

Her fianceé’s events are not remote in time. They did not occur in his distant 

past where she might be excused from knowledge. Paige has: 1) dated Prisco for 

years; 2) has two children with him; and 3) lives with him. The most recent events 

are from 2017.  

We can review them to determine if Paige was unaware that her live-in fianceé 

had a drug and criminal history.  

Since Kevin’s Countermotion, he obtained additional criminal records on 

Paige’s fianceé [Prisco] from California.1 These records are from 2013. The first 

item of note is that Prisco’s address is listed as “transient.” Another way of saying 

homeless.  

The police were called for an apparent drug overdose. Prisco told the police 

he had a Xanax prescription (he did not) and took more than the prescribed dose. 

                                                 

1 See Visalia Police department records listed as Exhibit 4. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

3 
 

Prisco was taken to the hospital. Later, the officer met him at the hospital and the 

officer noted Prisco had approximately 45 pills in his possession.  

The officer spoke to Prisco’s father who stated he “knows his son has a drug 

problem and is addicted to Xanax.” His father also states that because of Prisco’s 

drug problem, he [father] evicted Prisco days earlier from his home.  

While at the hospital, the officer came in contact with another individual who 

was also admitted for a drug overdose. This individual told the officer that Prisco 

had given him the drugs. 

Prisco was arrested and charged with possession of schedule 4 narcotics and 

distribution.  The officer interviewed Prisco who admitted abuse of Xanax for 

several years. The records indicate that as part of his plea deal, Prisco would enter a 

live-in rehabilitation program. The case appears to have concluded at the end of 2014.  

As stated in Kevin’s supplement to his countermotion, Prisco was charged in 

2016 with driving under the influence (of Xanax) and also possession of a dangerous 

weapon. It was also in 2016 that Prisco’s mother publicly took to Facebook to tell 

everyone to not give money to her son —because he is a drug addict and you’d only 

be enabling him. It was within two weeks of this post that Prisco posted a photo of 

he and Ryder in an ocean in California. (Kevin was never notified that Ryder was 

being taken out of state.) 
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Then, in April 2017, Prisco was again arrested and charged with DUI— again 

for Xanax (and THC). The case details indicate Prisco spent two days in jail for this 

offense as he was given 2 days credit for time served in the final disposition.  

Fresh off that arrest, on May 5, 2017 Prisco then had the arrest for soliciting 

drugs at a recreation center in Henderson, as well as resisting arrest. When searched 

by police, Prisco had tin foil with burnt residue, lighter, Xanax (no prescription) 

wrapped in a paper towel, and a pipe identified by officers as one typically used for 

methamphetamine or heroin. Prisco was in jail for three days for this offense prior 

to being released.  

 As part of his plea deal, Prisco was ordered to abstain from drugs.  

 In October 2017, the court issued a show cause order, with a show cause 

hearing held on October 31, 2017. At this hearing, the court found Prisco “non-

compliant” with the “no drugs” provision of his plea agreement. Prisco stipulated 

that he was non-compliant. The court sentenced him to 2 additional days in jail for 

this violation.  
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Lastly, Kevin text messaged Paige in June 2017 when he found information 

online about this incident—including a screen shot of the online newspaper article.2 

Paige never responded.3 

Considering all of the above, Paige’s assertion that she had no knowledge of 

Prisco’s drug use and arrests is not believable for the following reasons: 1) Prisco 

has spent several days in jail during times they resided together; 2) Kevin text 

messaged Paige about the incidences; and 3) Prisco’s family has publicly posted on 

social media about Prisco’s serious drug problem.  

Furthermore, Paige’s assertion that “this is not an ongoing concern as 

Defendant’s fianceé’ has received substance abuse counselling and has abstained 

from the use of any illicit substances” should not be satisfactory to this court as 

Prisco’s drug and arrest history goes back years; and he just violated his probation 

and served jail time in October for failing to comply with his non-use of drugs 

provision.  Also, it is doubtful that Paige is in any position to assess whether Prisco 

has overcome his demons since, by her account, this all went on right under her nose 

without her being aware. And that is a major problem for Ryder.  

/ / / 

                                                 

2 See text message from Kevin to Paige dated June 14, 2017 listed as Exhibit 5.  
3 It is possible she did not respond because she blocked Kevin’s number, which she has a history 

of doing.  
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B. Co-Parenting 

 Kevin provided numerous examples of Paige unilaterally taking Ryder to 

medical and dental appointments without informing him. This also included Ryder 

having to be taken to the hospital and seek follow-up treatment after an auto 

accident—which she also never told Kevin about.  

 Paige asserts in her Opposition that Kevin has unrealistic dental and medical 

expectations for Ryder; and that Kevin feels a child “should never have cavities.” 

She also asserts, without any proof, that Kevin stands in the way of “every” medical 

decision Paige tries to make. However, that cannot be true because Paige admitted 

in her deposition that she never even tells Kevin of medical and dental appointments. 

Any proof that Paige has that she has now attempted to involve Kevin in these 

decisions will be from after her April 2018 deposition, at which time she was advised 

legally that her behavior will not look good to this court. Prior to that, Paige gave no 

regard to Kevin’s legal custody rights.  

 Kevin obtained Ryder’s dental records.4 Kevin had a hard time getting these 

records because when Paige set Ryder up at Little Smiles Dental, she left the “father” 

section blank, which can be seen on the records, and she also indicated his preferred 

name to be Ryder Petit. Kevin was wrong about a filling falling out. But, what he 

                                                 

4 See Ryder’s dental records listed as Exhibit 6. 
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assumed was a hole where a filling had fallen out, was actually just a large unfilled 

cavity in Ryder’s mouth. Nevertheless, when Kevin contacted Paige as to who 

Ryder’s dentist was, she refused to say. Instead, she waited until Ryder was returned 

to her and she took him to the dentist— something Kevin was trying to do when he 

identified the problem.  Ryder has had five cavities as a four-year-old. That is not 

normal.  

 Kevin also obtained the medical records from the car accident Ryder was in 

that Paige did not tell him about.5 The medical records list Ryder’s name as “Ryder 

Blake Petit” not Ryder Petit-Adrianzen, his full legal name. Paige is fully aware of 

Ryder’s full legal name as she unsuccessfully appealed this Court’s decision to 

hyphenate Ryder’s name. Of note in these records is the complete omission of 

Kevin’s name. Under “nearest relative” for Ryder, Paige put “Mark Petit”, her father.  

 Kevin also obtained Ryder’s medical records from his primary doctor.6 Kevin 

was not consulted with selecting this physician, and as stated, has never been 

informed of Ryder’s appointments until very recently. Ryder’s name is correct on 

these documents, but only after Kevin asked them to change it. Of note on these 

records, the social history states “lives with mom and her family. Father limited 

                                                 

5 See Ryder’s Summerlin Hospital records listed as Exhibit 7.  
6 See Ryder’s Durango Pediatrics records listed as Exhibit 8. 
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involvement.” Kevin has had weekly custody of Ryder for years—and filed his 

divorce and custody case when Ryder was only two months old.  

 For years, Kevin has expressed concerns over a possible speech issue with 

Ryder and has asked Paige if they could get him evaluated. Paige has always refused.  

 Kevin accompanied Paige to Ryder’s doctor appointment on July 25, 2018. 

From the beginning, Kevin felt the doctor was not taking him seriously, likely based 

on never having heard of him (and the records saying over and over Dad is minimally 

involved). Kevin wanted a referral to a family therapist and a speech evaluation. The 

concern with the family therapist stems from Ryder saying things making it unclear 

that he understands the dynamics of a split family. This was suggested for Ryder’s 

benefit.  

The doctor stated the speech referral could be done through “child find” but 

[Dad] wants a private referral because “child find” is only for children that have not 

yet started kindergarten (Ryder was about to start kindergarten two weeks later). The 

doctor was negative about the speech referral; therefore, Paige was also.  

 Then, on September 4th of this year, Kevin emailed Ryder’s teacher to 

formally request a speech evaluation. This was a formal request as Kevin had 

mentioned this to the teacher at a meet-and-greet event prior to school starting. Kevin 

thought this follow-up was just a formality. Instead, Kevin learned that the teacher 

had connected Paige and a speech therapist the night before at an open house—an 
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open house of which Kevin was never informed. Now, all of a sudden, Paige is 

acknowledging the issue as legitimate.  

 During the parties’ last court proceedings, the court made it clear that third-

parties could facilitate exchanges. In fact, Paige herself has regularly used third-

parties. Paige asserts in her Opposition that “grandmother” is a problem. But, it is 

grandmother who almost got run over when she tried to facilitate an exchange on 

Kevin’s behalf.  

 In December 2017, Grandmother attempted to retrieve Ryder from Paige on 

Kevin’s behalf. As she approached Paige’s car, which was parked backed in to a 

parking spot, she saw another person recording. Grandmother took out her phone to 

begin recording also. Then, Paige drove out of the parking spot, coming straight at 

Grandmother. Grandmother moved out of the way, with the car narrowly missing 

her. Grandmother called the police.7 

C. Paige’s Proposed Time Share Change is a Reduction to Kevin’s 

Time 

Paige asserts that her new proposed timeshare increases Kevin’s time. This is 

not true.  

                                                 

7 See police report filed by Grandmother on December 30, 2017 listed as Exhibit 9.  
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Based on the current order, in 2019, Kevin would have 105 days of visitation 

with Ryder.8  

Based on Paige’s proposal, the maximum time Kevin would have with Ryder 

in 2019 would be 98 days.9 And it could be less. Paige’s proposal allows each party 

to notice two weeks of vacation time. If both parties noticed their vacation on the 

other’s custodial time, Kevin would essentially lose the 14 days, leaving him with 

84 days— 21 days less than he would currently have.  

Ryder needs less time in Paige’s home and more time with Dad.  

D. Changed Circumstances 

 Paige asserts in her Opposition that there is no change of circumstances since 

the parties’ last custodial order. That is not true. The following has occurred since 

the parties’ last custodial order: 

1. Kevin has a new child who is Ryder’s little sister of whom 

Kevin has joint physical custody; 

2. Paige has failed to co-parent with Kevin and ignored his joint 

legal custody rights; 

                                                 

8 See Spreadsheet for 2019 under current custodial schedule listed as Exhibit 10. 
9 See Spreadsheet for 2019 under Paige’s proposal listed as Exhibit 11.  
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3. Ryder has signs of neglect, including five cavities for a four-

year-old, and more troubling, contracted scabies; unattended 

speech issues. 

4. Paige is cohabitating with a serious drug addict and criminal 

who has a long and recent history of troubling drug abuse— 

 which Paige is either lying about not knowing about; or, 

Paige is completely clueless as to whom she is allowing 

around the parties’ son. Either of which is a huge problem.  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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III. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Plaintiff requests this Court issue an Order: 

1. Denying Defendant’s request to grant her proposed timeshare schedule; 

2. Granting modification of physical custody to joint physical custody 

with a week on/week off timeshare;  

3. Granting Plaintiff’s request for a holiday and vacation schedule to 

match the one he has in Case D-17-557607-C in Dept. B;   

4. Granting Plaintiff’s request to modify child support; and,  

5.  For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.   

DATED this 14th day of September, 2018. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 14th day of September, 2018, served a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s 

Reply To Defendant’s Opposition To Countermotion For Modification Of Physical 

Custody To Joint; Holiday And Vacation Schedule And Week On/Week Off 

Timeshare, & Modification Of Child Support: 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 

melg@grimes-law.com 

olivian@grimes-law.com 

 

  

/s/ Crystal Beville 

Crystal Beville 

 



Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
9/14/2018 1:54 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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NEO 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335 phone 

(702) 732-9385 fax 

eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 

 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13489542-D 

Department: H  

 

 

 

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 HEARING 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on February 11, 2019, Order from September 17, 2018 

Hearing was entered, a copy of which is attached hereto and by reference fully incorporated herein.  

DATED this 14th day of February, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
2/14/2019 1:30 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that on the 14th 

day of February, 2019, served a true and correct copy of Notice of Entry of Order from September 

17, 2018 Hearing: 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial District Court’s E-

file and E-service System to the following: 

Mel Grimes, Esq. 

  
melg@grimes-law.com 

olivian@grimes-law.com 

 

/s/ Crystal Beville 

Crystal Beville 
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MOT 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335 phone 

(702) 732-9385 fax 

eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 

 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 

Department: H  

 

 

Date of Hearing: 

Time of Hearing: 

Oral Argument Requested: ☒Yes ☐ No 

 

PLAINTIFF’S NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION FOR 

RECONSIDERATION OF DENIAL OF EVIDENTIARY PROCEEDINGS 

ON PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY AND CHILD 

SUPPORT FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 ORDER ENTERED FEBRUARY 

14, 2019 
 

TO: Defendant, Paige Petit, and her attorney, Melvin, Grimes, Esq. 

NOTICE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS 

MOTION WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE 

UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN TEN (10) 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
2/28/2019 2:30 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COURT

April 3, 2019

10:00 a.m.
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DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION.  FAILURE TO FILE A 

WRITTEN RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT WITHIN TEN (10) 

DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE 

REQUESTED RELIEF BEING GRANTED BY THE COURT WITHOUT 

HEARING PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED HEARING DATE. 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a hearing will be held on this Motion before 

the Court, located at the Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis Ave., Las Vegas, 

Nevada 89101 in Department H, courtroom 3G at the following date and time: 

_____________________. 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby moves the Court for an 

Order: 

1. Reconsidering the denial of modification of physical custody to 

primary physical custody to Plaintiff from the September 17, 2018 

hearing entered February 14, 2019 without trial and an Order setting 

this matter for trial; 

2. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.   

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

iii 

 

This Motion is made and based on the Memorandum of Points and Authorities 

set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen attached hereto, all papers and 

pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by counsel, if any, at the hearing.  

DATED this 28th day of February, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

 

I. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

History of the Case 

 Plaintiff Kevin Adrianzen and Defendant Paige Petit have one child together: 

Ryder (aged 5). Ryder just started kindergarten in the fall of 2018. The parties had a 

custody trial in June of 2014 with this court granting Mom primary physical custody 

and joint legal custody to the parties.  

 The court’s custody order contains not a single required finding under the 

NRS 1245C.0035(4) best interest factors1 nor does the order contain any substantive 

findings of fact that support the court’s decision to give Mom primary physical 

custody.   

After trial, Mom filed a motion to alter/amend findings which was heard on 

October 27, 2014. The court treated this motion as a motion to modify based on the 

facts and allegations contained therein as they had almost exclusively occurred after 

the evidentiary proceedings.  

At that hearing, the court re-affirmed the parties have joint legal custody and 

that Mom needs to include Dad in on these decisions and appointments, as Dad was 

                                                 

1 Including this statutes predecessor.  
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already raising the issue of Mom’s non-communication on joint legal custody issues 

a mere four months after trial. At the conclusion of the hearing, the court stated: 

It is possible under the continuing jurisdiction of this court that it might be 

determined to be in the best interest of the child to alter or amend the 

timeshare if things like work schedules, or the age of the child, warrants a 

change.2  

 

Dad filed this case less than three months after Ryder was born. The court’s 

initial custody schedule had Dad’s visitation at 24 hours a week until Ryder reached 

age 1. Since then, Dad’s custodial timeshare is two days a week—every weekend. 

Dad has consistently exercised this timeshare the past four years.  

Latest Round of Motions 

Mom filed a motion to modify timeshare on July 31, 2018. Dad filed his 

Opposition and Countermotion to modify custody on August 23, 2018.  

Of note, prior to filing the motions, the parties had been talking through their 

attorneys. As was noted in Dad’s motion, a deposition had occurred wherein Dad’s 

counsel deposed Mom in a separate case. Dad was dealing with a separate custody 

case wherein the Mom in this case was a witness.  

As Dad’s other case wrapped up, he was ready to file a stand-alone motion to 

modify custody in this case, but Mom filed her motion first. Dad is concerned that 

                                                 

2 See October 27, 2014 hearing video at 10:39:20.  
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the court may have felt his countermotion to modify custody was only brought in 

response to Mom’s motion—making it less genuine. But this was not the case.  

The Allegations Contained in Dad’s Motion 

On August 23, 2018 Dad filed a Motion to modify custody outlining that:  

1. Mom is cohabitating and engaged to a person with a serious drug problem 

who has multiple recent DUI’s (with dugs), numerous recent arrests for 

drug behavior and probation violations;  

2. Mom violated Dad’s joint legal custody rights numerous times based on 

Mom’s sworn deposition testimony, by failing to tell Dad about their 

child’s medical and dental appointments. This court has already informed 

Mom at the October 27, 2014 hearing shortly after trial that Dad has joint 

legal custody and she needs to include him on these issues;  

3. Mom consenting to flu shots for their son without discussing or informing 

with Dad; 

4. Mom has blocked Dad’s number on her phone;  

5. Mom has moved multiple times (including again recently) without telling 

Dad where their son is living;  

6. Mom failed to tell Dad about their son being in a car accident which 

resulted in Mom taking their son to the hospital which she didn’t inform 

Dad of either;  



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

 

7. Mom failed to provide their son’s full legal name on official records, 

omitting Dad’s last name, and omitted Dad altogether on hospital and 

dental paperwork;  

8. Mom fails and continues to fail to respond to direct questions regarding 

their son such as asking about injuries; 

9. Mom has failed to accommodate any and all requests for additional time 

by Dad when he has family in town or other events because “the court did 

not order it”; 

10. Mom took their son out of state without Dad’s knowledge; 

11. Mom enrolled their son in school without informing Dad which school or 

discussing which school their son should attend; 

12. Mom allowed their son to contract scabies in her home; 

13. Mom fails to properly brush Ryder’s teeth, causing numerous dental 

problems which are excessive for a then-four-year-old; 

14. Dad has another child who he has joint physical custody of, and Dad would 

like to be able to plan activities with the siblings jointly; and 

15. Mom struck Dad during one exchange. 

The Court denied Dad’s motion to modify custody, stating all of the above, if 

true, was not a substantial change in circumstances since the last custodial order.  

Events Since Dad’s Motion and the Court’s Denial 
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1. Mom dictates exchange location, threatens Dad with police if he 

tries exchanging at her house, claims she has no phone and states 

Dad must use Talking Parent to communicate with her—despite no 

order for this; and Mom moved again  

Mom continues to dictate exchange terms, including location, and demanding 

that the exchange must occur at an agreed upon exchange location, or there will be 

no exchange, Mom further threatens that if Dad were to come to her and her 

boyfriend’s house to facilitate the exchanges, she will be calling the police. Mom 

suggests inappropriate exchange locations such as saloons/bar and marijuana 

dispensaries.  There is no court order for this; and there is no history of domestic 

violence between the parties.  

 Mom now claims she has NO PHONE and Dad must set up a Talking Parent 

account if he wishes to communicate with her.3 Dad already has a talking Parent 

account for his other child and cannot have two apps running simultaneously at the 

same time. There is no order for Talking Parent. Mom has unilaterally imposed this 

on Dad. When Dad’s counsel reached out to Mom’s counsel to inquire about contact 

information for Mom (after weeks’ worth of text messages and numerous emails 

from Dad to Mom went unanswered), Mom’s counsel responded that Mom does not 

                                                 

3 See email from Mom to Dad re: no phone listed as Exhibit 1.  
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have a phone and suggested Talking Parents. This is just not believable, and another 

example of the games Mom plays to try and make Dad’s life difficult. Mom’s 

counsel then offered Mom’s new address, which was news to Dad. Dad’s counsel 

had requested Mom’s contact information in mid-February and the new address 

received from Mom’s counsel for Mom was from her move in mid-December. The 

numerous texts and emails Dad sent to Mom also included requests for confirmation 

that she had moved, yet Mom never responded. 

2. Ryder’s dental situation is tantamount to neglect; Ryder’s 

overall hygiene is also deficient 

Dad raised in his motion issues about Ryder’s dental care while with Mom. 

Mom’s response was that Ryder had “never had a cavity.” This is completely untrue, 

and his dental situation has gone from bad to worse.  

 Ryder has been to the dentist at least in September and again just this February. 

In September, the records state: “patient has history of incipient or active caries or 

lesions. Socioeconomic status of family.”4 This means 5-year-old Ryder’s teeth are 

starting to decay; and the dentist is citing the “socioeconomic status of family” 

(Mom) as a contributing factor. The Dentist is inferring Mom either lacks the 

resources to properly care for Ryder’s teeth, or they are saying Mom’s household 

                                                 

4 See Patient Progress Dental Notes Listed as Exhibit 2.  
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does not place a high priority on dental hygiene. Poor oral hygiene can be linked to 

health/organ issues. 

 On the February 13, 2019 appointment notes, all sorts of issues are noted. 

Tons of decay and even a crown is recommended. Mom reports “patient has a 

difficult time at home brushing and flossing.”5 He’s five.  

 Based on Dad’s personal knowledge, Ryder has at least seven cavities at age 

five. Mom had the cavity procedures performed by the dentist without informing or 

discussing with Dad.  Dad arranged for the crown to be done for Ryder after 

obtaining Mom’s agreement.  

 In addition to the dental concerns, Dad has other hygiene concerns about 

Ryder while with Mom. Dad has communicated his concerns to Mom about Ryder’s 

hygiene issues since the onset of Dad’s visits with Ryder.  As stated in the prior 

motion, Ryder contracted scabies in Mom’s home. Ryder also had a large stye 

approximately two (2) years ago and has had numerous since that time.  Styes are 

caused by bacteria infections of the eye. Every visitation for Dad starts with a bath 

for Ryder as his finger and toe nails are full of black dirt which likely are a breeding 

ground for the styes when Ryder touches his face. All of Ryder’s styes linger for 

                                                 

5 Id.  
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months at a time.  Ryder has had one stye since mid-November and another one 

develop just a month ago. 

 On Saturday February 9th, 2019, Mom asked Dad via email if she could do the 

exchange an hour later that same day. Dad agreed despite only getting 48 hours a 

week already and because Ryder was at a party and Dad did not want him to miss 

any of the party. The email came 30 minutes before the exchange.  Then Mom 

emailed (again, no phone?) Dad to say she would be at least 60 minutes late. A short 

while later, Dad heard his dog barking. Dad’s doorbell does not work, and his outside 

lights were off. He went to the door to see what the commotion was. Upon opening 

the door Dad saw 5-year-old Ryder standing there in the dark. Mom was gone.  

Ryder appeared petrified.  

3. Dad is unable to do extracurricular activities with Ryder 

Being that Dad only has 48 hours a week of visitation, doing extracurricular 

activities with Ryder has been difficult. As far as Dad knows, Ryder is in no 

extracurricular activities with Mom. 

 Since last summer, Dad has been doing soccer with Ryder on Sundays. For 

months, Dad has asked Mom if he can take Ryder to special clinics on Fridays as 

most of Ryder’s teammates have eclipsed him in skill-level because they all 

participate more than one day a week. Mom refused every single time. At Sunday 

soccer, the coaches and other parents regularly ask Ryder if he will be participating 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

 

on other days and Dad has to tell the coaches, “sorry, he can’t come on other days 

as I only have visitation on the weekends.” Ryder wants to be doing this.  

 In April, Dad will need to move soccer to Mondays because Ryder’s Sunday 

class will go up in level and Ryder cannot move up with his teammates due to lack 

of practice.  Monday soccer will also allow Ryder to attend Sunday church. The 

parties exchange on Mondays at 6:00 p.m. Monday soccer would require the 

exchange to be at 7:00 p.m. Since Mom was not agreeable to losing one (1) hour a 

week of her time with Ryder, to attend Monday soccer starting in April, Dad then 

offered they could keep the same 48- hour block and just move the Saturday 

exchange to 7:00 p.m. too. Mom refused. 

4. Recent Domestic Incident at Mom’s Home with her fiancé  

On or around November 12, 2018, Kevin got a Facebook message from 

Mom’s fiancé Shawn. The message stated: “Hey Kevin I’m not with Paige anymore 

and I want to see you win this shit you got going on so if there is anything you need 

from me just let me know because she fucked me too.”6 

This message made sense to Dad because that weekend Ryder had told him 

that Mom and Shawn had gotten in a fight and the police were called. This was being 

relayed by a five-year-old, thus Dad always considers this when Ryder tells him 

                                                 

6 See Facebook message from Shawn to Kevin listed as Exhibit 3. 
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something. But Ryder’s statement of a fight, and police; and then the Facebook 

message, strongly indicated to Dad that something happened at Mom’s house—in 

front of Ryder that caused the relationship to end, the police to come, and Shawn to 

send Dad this message.  

Apparently, Mom and Shawn reconciled because the Facebook message 

disappeared shortly thereafter.  

5. Injuries on Ryder 

One occasion where Dad noticed a bruise on Ryder’s face (that appeared 

a day or so before the last court hearing) and Mom did admit to Dad that Mom’s 

boyfriend caused the bruise on Ryder’s face. 

6. Holiday and Vacation timeshare 

Dad has suggested, on multiple occasions, that they divide the four (4) weeks 

of holiday time Ryder has off from school and to also discuss vacation time for both 

parents during the summer months.  Mom refuses to consider or discuss. 

7. Ryder’s insurance coverage 

Ryder’s medical insurance lapsed and Mom was not aware until Dad took 

Ryder to a therapy appointment and was declined due to no insurance. 

8. School issues since Ryder started kindergarten 

Ryder started kindergarten in fall 2018.  Mom does not send any school flyers 

or information to Dad.  Dad missed Open House because he was not informed or 
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given the information Mom received from the school.  Mom has not updated her 

current contact information with the school which would be needed for emergency 

purposes.  Mom will not allow Dad extra time in order to take Ryder to tutoring.  

Ryder is in need of tutoring since he is behind in academics in comparison to the 

other kindergarteners in his class. 

 This motion follows. 

II. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

The Court Should Reconsider its Prior Order and Set an Evidentiary 

Hearing on Custody Modification 

 The court may reconsider a prior ruling with the moving party filing a motion 

within 14 calendar days after service of the notice of entry of order.7 

1. The Court’s Custody Order is Legally Deficient  

 A custody order must tie the child’s best child's best interest, as informed by 

specific, relevant findings respecting the NRS 125.480(4) and any other relevant 

factors, to the custody determination made. 8  Specific findings and an adequate 

                                                 

7 EDCR 5.512(a).  
8 Davis v. Ewalefo, 352 P.3d 1139, 1143 (2015)(citing Bluestein v. Bluestein, –––– Nev. ––––, –

–––, 345 P.3d 1044, 1049 (2015) (reversing and remanding a custody modification order for 

further proceedings because “the district court abused its discretion by failing to set forth specific 

findings that modifying the parties' custodial agreement to designate [mother] as primary 

physical custodian was in the best interest of the child”); see NRS 125.510(5) (“Any order 

awarding a party a limited right of custody to a child must define that right with sufficient 

particularity to ensure that the rights of the parties can be properly enforced and that the best 

interest of the child is achieved.”) (emphasis added); NRS 125C.010(1)(a) (identical, except it 
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explanation of the reasons for the custody determination “are crucial to enforce or 

modify a custody order and for appellate review.”9 More is at stake than facilitating 

appellate review.10 A child custody determination, once made, controls the child's 

and the parents' lives until the child ages out or the decree is judicially modified.11  

A parent cannot reasonably be expected to show that “a substantial change in 

circumstances” as to the child's best interest warrants modification of an existing 

child custody determination unless the determination at least minimally explains the 

circumstances that account for its limitations and terms.12 

Here, the parties’ custody order contains no required statutory findings; nor 

does it offer any factual explanations as to why Mom got primary custody. Dad 

therefore cannot legally prevail on custody modification as he has no basis for the 

starting point. This is exactly what the Davis court was talking about. And this court 

                                                 

substitutes “a right of visitation of a minor child” for “a limited right of custody”); Smith v. 

Smith, 726 P.2d 423, 426 (Utah 1986) (deeming it “essential” that a custody determination set 

forth “the basic facts which show why that ultimate conclusion is justified”). 
9 Id. (citing Rivero, 125 Nev. at 430, 216 P.3d at 227.) 
10 Id. 
11 Compare Rennels v. Rennels, ––– Nev. ––––, ––––, 257 P.3d 396, 398 (2011) (holding that a 

stipulated order according nonparents visitation can only be modified “upon a showing of a 

substantial change in circumstances that affects [the] child's welfare such that it is in the child's 

best interest to modify the existing visitation arrangement”), and Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. at 

150, 161 P.3d at 242 (to similar effect), with Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction and 

Enforcement Act (UCCJEA) § 303, adopted in Nevada as NRS 125A.445(1) (under the 

UCCJEA, a child custody determination carries nationwide effect; a court “shall recognize and 

enforce a child custody determination of a court of another state if the latter court exercised 

jurisdiction in substantial conformity with the provisions of” the UCCJEA). 
12 Id. at 1144.  
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denying Dad’s motion on this basis is the exact outcome the Nevada Supreme Court 

cautioned against.  

2. Dad has established a prima facie case for custody modification, 

thus the court must set trial 

 The Nevada Supreme Court has weighed in on whether a trial court must 

conduct an evidentiary hearing on a motion to modify custody, or whether a district 

court may decide such a motion on affidavits and points and authorities alone.13  

The Nevada Supreme Court adopted an “adequate cause” standard and held 

that  a district court has the discretion to deny a motion to modify custody without 

holding a hearing unless the moving party demonstrates “adequate cause” for 

holding a hearing.14 “Adequate cause” arises where the moving party presents a 

prima facie case for modification.15 To constitute a prima facie case it must be shown 

that: (1) the facts alleged in the affidavits are relevant to the grounds for 

modification; and (2) the evidence is not merely cumulative or impeaching.16 

                                                 

13 Rooney v. Rooney, 109 Nev. 540 (1993). 
14 Id. at 542-543. (See Pridgeon v. Superior Court, 134 Ariz. 177, 655 P.2d 1 (1982) (court shall 

deny a motion to modify custody unless it finds that the pleadings establish **125 adequate 

cause for hearing the motion); Betzer v. Betzer, 749 S.W.2d 694 (Ky.Ct.App.1988) (if the trial 

court determines that the affidavits fail to establish adequate cause for a hearing, the motion for 

modification of custody shall be denied without a hearing); Lutzi v. Lutzi, 485 N.W.2d 311 

(Minn.Ct.App.1992) (court did not wrongfully deny an evidentiary hearing on a proposal to 

modify custody where the moving party failed to demonstrate a prima facie case for the 

modification); Roorda v. Roorda, 25 Wash.App. 849, 611 P.2d 794 (1980) (court shall deny a 

motion to modify custody unless the affidavits establish adequate cause for hearing the motion). 
15 Id. 
16 Id.  
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The Nevada Supreme Court has also weighed in on what the moving party 

must show to modify custody. The moving party must show that: (1) there has been 

a substantial change in circumstances affecting the welfare of the child, and (2) the 

child's best interest is served by the modification.17  

The Nevada Supreme Court held that the “change in circumstances” involves 

the parents, the child, and family unit as a whole; and while stability is important 

and the court should not take this prong lightly, “unless circumstances have changed 

to such an extent that modification is appropriate.”18 

Facts matter. In Ellis, the non-custodial parent filed a motion to modify 

custody, stating “the circumstances warranted a change in custody because, among 

other things, Geena's school performance was in decline.”19 In its order, the court 

determined that joint physical custody was in Geena's best interest and thus modified 

the custody arrangement so that Carucci and Ellis would alternate week-long 

custody of their daughter. The district court stated that Geena's school performance 

was the key substantial issue litigated and concluded that Banta's testimony that 

Geena's academic achievement had significantly slipped constituted sufficient 

evidence of changed circumstances to warrant a modification.20 That is the entirety 

                                                 

17 Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. 145, 150 (2007).  
18 Id. at 151.  
19 Id.  
20 Id.  
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of the “changed circumstances” in Nevada’s polestar case on custody modification 

threshold.  

Here, Dad has averred way more significant and troubling facts and 

circumstances relevant to child custody.   

Ellis: Dad alleges via motion that the child’s grades have deteriorated. Court 

sets evidentiary hearing. Testimony supported Dad was more involved than Mom 

with school, thus a modification to joint physical custody was in the child’s best 

interest. Decision upheld. 

Here, Dad alleges via motion that: 

1. Mom is cohabitating and engaged to a person with a serious 

drug problem who has multiple recent DUI’s (with dugs), and 

numerous recent arrests for drug behavior and probation 

violations;  

2. Mom violated Dad’s joint legal custody rights numerous 

times based on Mom’s sworn deposition testimony, by failing 

to tell Dad about their child’s medical and dental 

appointments. This court has already informed Mom at the 

October 27, 2014 hearing shortly after trial that Dad has joint 

legal custody and she needs to include him on these issues;  

3. Mom has blocked Dad’s number on her phone;  
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4. Mom has moved multiple times (including again recently) 

without telling Dad where their son is living;  

5. Mom failed to tell Dad about their son being in a car accident 

which required a hospital emergency room visit;  

6. Mom failed to provide their son’s full legal name on official 

records, omitting Dad’s last name and omitting Dad as 

Ryder’s parent on same forms/records;  

7. Mom fails and continues to fail to respond to direct questions 

regarding their son such as asking about injuries;  

8. Mom has failed to accommodate any and all requests for 

additional time by Dad when he has family in town or other 

events because she has plans or ignores me and “the court did 

not order it”; 

9. Mom allowed their son to contract scabies in her home; 

10. Mom fails to properly brush Ryder’s teeth, causing numerous 

dental problems which are excessive for a then-four-year-old; 

11. Dad has another child who he has joint physical custody of, 

and Dad would like to be able to plan activities with the 

siblings jointly;  

12. Mom struck Dad during one exchange; and 
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13. Mom took Ryder out of state without informing Dad. 

When the court denied Dad’s motion without an evidentiary hearing, it is 

saying that even if everything above is true, it does not warrant modifying custody. 

Additionally, as stated, Dad cannot hit a target he cannot see. The Court’s prior 

custody order is so legally deficient that Dad has no idea what he’d even need to 

prove to establish a change in circumstances as there’s zero findings to support the 

court’s custodial order.  

The court should therefore reconsider its prior order denying Dad’s motion to 

modify without an evidentiary hearing and set this matter for trial so the court can 

take evidence and set custody in Ryder’s best interest.  

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 
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/ / 

 

III. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Kevin Adrianzen requests this Court issue 

an Order: 

1. Reconsidering the denial of modification of physical custody to 

primary physical custody to Plaintiff from the September 17, 2018 

hearing entered February 14, 2019 without trial and an Order setting 

this matter for trial; 

2. For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.   

DATED this 28th day of February, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff 

Kevin Adrianzen 
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OPPC (FAM) 
MELVIN R GRIMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 12972 
THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 
8540 S. Eastern Ave., Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
Tel: (702) 347-4357 
Fax: (702) 224-2160 
Attorney for Defendant 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

*********** 

KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff,  

 
CASE NO.:  D-13-489542-D 

 
DEPT:         H 

Vs.  
 

HEARING DATE:    APRIL 3, 2019 
HEARING TIME:   10:00 AM 

PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant.  

 

 
 DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR 

RECONSIDERATION OF DENIAL OF EVIDENTIARY PROCEEDINGS 
ON PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY AND CHILD 

SUPPORT FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 ORDER ENTERED FEBUARY 14, 
2019 
 AND  

COUNTERCLAIM FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS  
 

COMES NOW, the Defendant, PAIGE PETIT, by and through her attorney, 

MELVIN R. GRIMES, ESQ., of THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE, and submits this 

Defendant’s Opposition to Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Evidentiary 

Proceedings on Plaintiff’s Motion to Modify Custody and Child Support from 

September 17, 2018 Order Entered February 14, 2019 and Counterclaim for 

Attorney’s Fees and Costs. 

/ / / 

/ / /  

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
3/21/2019 9:51 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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This Opposition is based on the papers and pleadings on file with this court, 

the Memorandum of Points and Authorities attached hereto, and such argument as 

this Court may permit. 

 Respectfully submitted this    21st     day of March 2019. 

THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 

       /s/ Melvin R. Grimes      _ 
MELVIN R. GRIMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No: 12972 
Melg@grimes-law.com  
THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 
8540 S. Eastern Ave., Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
p: (702) 347-4357 
f: (702) 224-2160 
Attorney for Defendant 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. Statement of Facts 

As the court has been briefed on this matter ad nauseum, Defendant will refrain 

from providing a rote recitation of the facts as the history of the case along with the 

entirety of the Plaintiff’s motion is little more than an attempt to relitigate already 

ruled upon matters. 

II. Legal Argument  

A. The Court’s Order is Not Legally Deficient 
A custody order must tie in the child’s best interest accompanied by finding of 

fact with regards to the factors set forth by NRS 125C.0035(4) and any other factors 

that the Court deems relevant to the custody determination. Davis v. Ewalefo, 352 

P.3d 1139, 1143 (2015) (citing Bluestein v. Bluestein, ___ Nev. ____, ___, 345 P.3d 

1044, 1049 (2015). 

Here, the court entered findings of fact, in its order, stating “THE COURT 

FINDS the actions of Defendant’s fiancé have not caused any neglect on the part of 

the Defendant.”  That the Plaintiff is dissatisfied with such a finding, does not amount 

to a legally deficient finding of fact on the part of the Court.  

The Plaintiff continues to argue that due to the drafting of the original custody 

order, he is unable to prevail on a motion to modify custody as there is no starting 

point. Plaintiff should have argued this matter at the time of the original custody 

order. As such, any argument would clearly be excluded by the doctrine of laches.    

B. Plaintiff Failed to Establish a Prima Facie Case for Custody 
Modification 

The Nevada Supreme Court has adopted the “adequate cause” standard which 

empowers the district court to deny a motion to modify custody without holding a 

hearing unless the moving party demonstrates “adequate cause” for holding a 

hearing. Rooney v. Rooney, 109 Nev. 540, 542-3 (1993). “Adequate cause” requires 

that the moving party present a prima facie case for modification. Id. In order to 
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show a prima facie case, the moving party must show: 1) that the facts alleged in the 

affidavits are relevant to the grounds for modification; and 2) the evidence is not 

merely cumulative or impeaching. Id. 

The standard to modify physical custody was set forth in Ellis v. Carucci 

requiring that the moving party show that: 1) there has been a substantial change in 

circumstances affecting the welfare of the minor child; and 2) the child’s best 

interest is served by the modification. 123 Nev 145, 150 (2007). 

Here, the Plaintiff failed to present a prima facie case. The Plaintiff attempts 

to compare this court’s decision to that in Ellis but fails to take into account the 

necessity of the court to see each case in its unique totality.  

Plaintiff attempts to apply a line of logic which is designed only to mislead the 

court in that “When the court denied Dad’s motion without an evidentiary hearing, it 

is saying that even if everything above is true, it does not warrant modifying 

custody.” What the Court explicitly said is that “there is no adequate cause to re-

litigate custody.”  

Further, the Plaintiff is so concerned with simply winning a custody battle that 

he has resorted to using terms such as “dad cannot hit a target he cannot see.” This 

isn’t a competition, this is matter regarding the welfare of a minor child. The fact 

that the Plaintiff cannot see the target may be an indicator that his fictitious target 

simply doesn’t exist. The Court’s prior custody order was very clear. Plaintiff 

appears to be confused as he states that “he has no idea what he’d even need to prove 

to establish a change in circumstances…” What the Plaintiff appears to be missing is 

that there simply has not been a change in circumstances.  

That the Plaintiff feels his argument constitutes circumstances affecting the 

welfare of the child is not important. What is important is that he failed to plead 

evidence sufficient enough to convince this court.  

The Plaintiff’s absurd reasoning aside, the Defendant is not opposed to a 

reevaluation of child support. Any order moving forward should be based on the 
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parties’ current financial disclosure forms, actual earning capacity, and with a full 

understanding of the financial needs of the minor child.  

III. Counterclaim  

A. The Defendant is entitled to an Award for Past Medical Expenses 

The Parties stipulated and agreed that medical expenses would be evenly split 

by the parties.1 The parties Decree of Divorce does not make such division pursuant 

to the 30/30 rule. However, Paige has submitted each of the following to Plaintiff and 

he has failed to reimburse her any of the costs.2 Plaintiff owes Paige $6650.99 before 

the application of appropriate interest.  

B. The Defendant is Entitled to an Award of Attorney’s Fees and Costs 

Chapter 18 of the Nevada Revised Statutes grants courts discretion to award 

attorney fees “when the court finds that the claim…was brought or maintained 

without reasonable ground” and permits courts to “punish for and deter frivolous or 

vexatious claims and defenses because such claims and defenses overburden limited 

judicial resources, hinder the timely resolution of meritorious claims and increase” 

costs.  NRS 18.010(2)(b). To justify an award of attorney’s fees, the district court 

must determine whether there were reasonable grounds for the claims asserted. 

Bergmann v. Boyce, 109 Nev. 670, 675, 856 P.2d 560, 563 (1993). The proper inquiry 

evaluates the frivolousness of the suit at the time it was initiated. Barozzi v. Benna, 

112 Nev. 635, 639, 918 P.2d 301, 303 (1996).   

Further, the Plaintiff has failed to present facts and legal analysis that would 

enable this court to provide him the relief sought. The Plaintiff’s countermotion was 

doomed from the onset and have done little more than create a financial burden upon 

the Defendant and served only to further inflame litigation in a case that has been 

ruled upon.  

                                                 
1 See the Decree of Divorce filed on August 18, 2014, page 3, lines 11-14. 
2 See Exhibit A – Copy of schedule and related billings and receipts. 
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The court should therefore award the Defendant attorney’s fees and costs 

related to the defense of the present motion. The Defendant seeks leave of the court 

to submit an affidavit of fees and costs, and a Brunzell affidavit in support of an award 

of fees and cost. 

IV. Conclusion 

Defendant, PAIGE PETIT, therefore, prays that this Court:  

1. Deny the Plaintiff’s Motion; 

2. Grant Defendant an Award of Attorney’s Fees and Costs; and 

3. Any further relief this court deems just and equitable. 

 Respectfully submitted this _21st_ day of March 2019. 

THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 

       /s/ Melvin R. Grimes      _ 
MELVIN R. GRIMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No: 12972 
Melg@grimes-law.com  
THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 
8540 S. Eastern Ave., Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
p: (702) 347-4357 
f: (702) 224-2160 
Attorney for Defendant 
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f: (702) 224-2160 
Attorney for Defendant 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

********* 
KEVIN ADRIANZEN,

     Plaintiff, 

       vs. 

PAIGE PETIT, 

     Defendant. 

CASE NO.: D-13-489542-D 
DEPT NO.: H 

HEARING DATE: April 3, 2019 
TIME: 10:00 AM 

APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS TO DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION 

FOR RECONSIDERATION OF DENIAL OF EVIDENTIARY 

PROCEEDINGS ON PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY AND 

CHILD SUPPORT FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 ORDER ENTERED 

FEBRUARY 14, 2019 AND COUNTERCLAIM FOR ATTORNEY’S FES AND 

COSTS 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
3/21/2019 9:51 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

mailto:Kristina@WellerEsq.com
mailto:Kristina@WellerEsq.com


1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

T
H

E
 G

R
IM

E
S 

L
A

W
 O

FF
IC

E
, P

L
L

C
 

85
40

 S
. E

A
ST

E
RN

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 S
U

IT
E

 1
00

 
L A

S 
V

E
G

A
S, 

N
E

V
A

D
A

  8
91

23
 

P:
 (7

02
) 3

47
-4

35
7 
  

F:
 (7

02
) 2

24
-2

16
0 

// 

COMES NOW, Defendant, PAIGE PETIT, by and through her Attorney of 

Record, Melvin R. Grimes, ESQ of The Grimes Law Office and Submits this 

Appendix of Exhibits to Defendant’s Opposition to Motion for Reconsideration of 

Denial of Evidentiary Proceedings on Plaintiff’s Motion to Modify Custody and Child 

Support from September 17, 2018 Order Entered February 14, 2019 and Counterclaim 

for Attorney’s Fees and Costs. 

Dated this   21st   day of March, 2019. 

THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 

_/s/ Melvin R. Grimes________ 
Melvin R. Grimes, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No.12972 
8540 S. Eastern Avenue Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV  89123 
(702) 347-4357

EXHIBITS 

Exhibit Title of Document(s) Bates Stamped No. 

A Defendant’s Medical Bills DEF0001-DEF0114 
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EXHIBIT A 

 



DEF0001



DEF0002



DEF0003



DEF0004



DEF0005



DEF0006



DEF0007



DEF0008



DEF0009



DEF0010



DEF0011



DEF0012



DEF0013



DEF0014



DEF0015



DEF0016



DEF0017
Docket 78966   Document 2019-30795



DEF0018



DEF0019



DEF0020
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DEF0022
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DEF0060
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DEF0065
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DEF0075
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DEF0090
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DEF0094



DEF0095



DEF0096



DEF0097



DEF0098



DEF0099



DEF0100



DEF0101



DEF0102



DEF0103



DEF0104



DEF0105



DEF0106



DEF0107



DEF0108



DEF0109



DEF0110



DEF0111



DEF0112



DEF0113



DEF0114
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ROPP 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335 phone 

(702) 732-9385 fax 

eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 

 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 

Department: H  

 

 

Date of Hearing:  April 9, 2019 

Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

 

 

PLAINTIFF’S REPLY AND OPPOSITION TO COUNTERMOTION FOR 

ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS 
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby submits the following 

reply to Defendant’s Opposition and opposes Defendant’s Countermotion 

requesting the Court issue an Order: 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
4/5/2019 11:43 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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1. Reconsidering the denial of modification of physical custody to 

primary physical custody to Plaintiff from the September 17, 2018 

hearing entered February 14, 2019 without trial and an Order setting 

this matter for trial;  

2. Denying Mom’s request for reimbursement of years old and never-

before-seen medical bills; 

3. Denying Defendant’s request for an Award of Attorney’s Fees and 

Costs; and  

4.  For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

This Reply and Opposition is made and based on the Memorandum of Points 

and Authorities set forth below, the Declaration of Kevin Adrianzen attached hereto, 

all papers and pleadings on file herein, and evidence presented by counsel, if any, at 

the hearing.  

DATED this 5th day of April, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Mom counters Dad’s Motion to reconsider on his custody modification 

motion by including receipts and bills for allegedly over $6,600 in unreimbursed 

medical bills dating back to Ryder’s birth— more than five years ago; and pre-dating 

the parties’ 2014 divorce. This is the fist time Dad has ever seen these bills. They 

have never been remitted to Dad for reimbursement. Mom provided no proof she 

ever sent these bills to Dad, despite her assertions that she did.  

Ironically, Mom’s submission and request for reimbursement of these bills 

proves two of Dad’s points: 1) Mom has failed to include Dad in many of Ryder’s 

medical appointments as he was unaware of these appointments; and 2) The amount 

of medical treatment Ryder has received with this amount of out-of-pocket expenses 

when he is on state Medicaid is astronomical for a five-year-old. What is even more 

perplexing is why were these “bills” not brought up when the parties were just last 

in court? Because Mom knows she never told Dad about these bills or appointments 

and they are a further indication of her exclusion of Dad from Ryder’s life.  

Some of these bills are prior to the parties’ divorce proceedings in 2014.  
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II. STATEMENT OF FACTS & ARGUMENT IN REPLY 

A. The Court Should Grant Dad’s Motion for Reconsideration and Set 

an Evidentiary Hearing; and Deny Mom’s Request for 

Reimbursement of Never-Before-Disclosed Medical Bills 

Dad has laid out numerous facts in his motion showing there are a litany of 

serious issues ongoing that affect Ryder’s well-being. These were outlined ad 

nauseum in Dad’s motion to reconsider as well as his original motion.   

 The Court felt Dad did not meet his legal burden of “substantial change in 

circumstances” since the last custodial order— which was prior to Ryder turning a 

year old. Dad cited an on-point case that specifically provides that a custody order 

must contain statutory findings of best interest because a litigant in a post-decree 

proceeding requires these findings to make a case for modification. The court 

denying Dad’s motion and stating he failed to make a prima facia case of substantial 

change in circumstances, with an order with zero findings, puts Dad in a position 

that he can never modify custody—regardless of Ryder’s best interest.   

 Dad pled numerous issues as to why custody should be changed in this case— 

far more than the issues which existed in Ellis, the polestar case on custody 

modification burden. And these issues are ongoing every single day.  

 Since filing his current motion for reconsideration, Ryder came to Dad’s with 

bruises on his arm and both of the calves of his legs. Dad asked what happened? 
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Ryder’s response was “Shawn kicked me, and I fell down.” Shawn is Mom’s “fiancé” 

and as previously shown, has a plethora of serious personal problems including out-

of-control drug use that led to him being arrested for pan-handling drugs outside a 

recreation center. This is who Ryder lives with in Mom’s home 5 days a week. When 

asked, Mom says Ryder “tripped going both up and downstairs while playing”—

which is not what Ryder told Dad. Granted Ryder is five, but this is not even close 

to the first time he has said disturbing things about Shawn. Notably, he also recently 

told Dad that there was a “fight” between Mom and Shawn and the police were 

involved. This was around the same day Shawn briefly reached out to Dad with an 

offer to “assist” Dad in his case until Mom and he reconciled.  

And considering Shawn’s drug history, Dad has legitimate concerns as to 

what is going on in Mom’s home and what Ryder may be witnessing and being 

exposed to as far as drug use. Just because Dad cannot prove having Shawn in the 

home has had a direct impact on Ryder, it is logical to assume someone with his 

recent drug history may be careless as to what he leaves laying around the house for 

a five-year-old to possibly consume.  

 Additionally, Mom sent Dad an email about a doctor’s appointment. She is 

now taking Ryder to the Ophthalmologist for the recurring stye issue Dad raised in 

his motion. Mom only acknowledged this issue after Dad brought it forth to the court. 

Mom initially told Dad the appointment was 10:00 a.m. Then she told him she 
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changed it to 8:00 a.m. Dad went at 8:00 a.m. and was told by the office that the 

appointment had been moved back to 10:00 a.m. Interestingly, the doctor’s office 

called Mom on the phone, right in front of Dad. Mom has maintained the last several 

months that she does not have a phone, thus Dad has no way to contact her except 

email. She has a phone. Everyone knows she has a phone. It is just another senseless 

game. 

 And Mom’s submission of over $6,000 in unpaid out-of-pocket medical 

expenses (dating back to 2013) is further proof. Seriously?  Most people do not have 

that amount of out-of-pocket medical expenses in their entire life. Ryder is five. 

Mom never gave Dad any of these receipts. Why? Because she was not even telling 

him she was taking Ryder to the doctor; or that there were issues. Further, the bills 

submitted are not all for Ryder and include Mom’s prenatal care.  None of these bills 

were ever provided by Mom to Dad.  Now, in response to Dad’s motion, Mom seeks 

reimbursement. She has waived that claim. 

 Moreover, these medical receipts are just another example of Mom lying. She 

claims she has “submitted each of the following” to Dad. Yet not a single ounce of 

proof. No emails. No letters. Nothing. Five years of supposed receipts and five years 

of supposed submissions to Dad; yet this is the first time this has ever been brought 

up—despite the parties being in court as recent as August. Fishy.  

 / / 
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B. The Court Must Deny Mom’s Request for Attorney’s Fees as She 

Failed to File a Financial Disclosure Form; and Mom’s Request is 

Meritless 

The court may award attorney fees to a prevailing party; or when the court 

finds a party has brought a claim or maintained a defense without reasonable grounds 

or to harass the opposing party.1 The court shall liberally construe this provision in 

favor of awarding attorney’s fees in appropriate situations.2       

When deciding attorney’s fees awards in family law matters, four 

requirements were set forth3: 1) counsel must cite a legal basis for attorney’s fees; 

2) the Court must evaluate the Brunzell4 factors; 3) the Court must consider any 

disparity in income of the parties under Wright 5 ; and 4) the request must be 

supported by affidavit or other evidence.  

All financial requests, including attorney’s fees, require the requesting party 

file a financial disclosure form within 2 judicial days of filing their motion or 

countermotion.6 

                                                 

1 NRS 18.010(2)(a)-(b).  
2 Id.  
3 Miller v. Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 119 P.3d 727 (2005). 
4 Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat’l Bank, 85 Nev. 345 (1969). 
5 Wright v. Osburn, 114 Nev. 1367, 1370 (1998). 
6 EDCR 5.506(2).  
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Here, the court should deny Mom’s request for fees on the merits, as well as 

based on her failure to file a financial disclosure form as required by court rule.  

To award Mom attorney’s fees, the court must find that Dad’s motion is 

frivolous or meant solely to harass. That is not the case here. Dad cited appropriate 

legal authority that supports his position and is based on spot-on Nevada Supreme 

Court precedent.  

The court should therefore deny Mom’s request for attorney’s fees.  

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 
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III. CONCLUSION 

BASED ON THE FOREGOING, Kevin Adrianzen requests this Court issue 

an Order: 

1. Reconsidering the denial of modification of physical custody to 

primary physical custody to Plaintiff from the September 17, 2018 

hearing entered February 14, 2019 without trial and an Order setting 

this matter for trial;  

2. Denying Mom’s request for reimbursement of years old and never-

before-seen medical bills; 

3. Denying Defendant’s request for an Award of Attorney’s Fees and 

Costs; and  

4.  For any other relief this Court deems fair and appropriate.  

DATED this 5th day of April, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Michael Burton 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 5th day of April, 2019, served a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s Reply 

and Opposition to Countermotion for Attorney’s Fees and Costs: 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Melvin Grimes, Esq. 

melg@grimes-law.com 

 

  

 

/s/ Crystal Beville 

Crystal Beville 
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SUPP 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335 phone 

(702) 732-9385 fax 

eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 

 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 KEVIN ADRIANZEN, 

Plaintiff, 

 vs. 

 PAIGE PETIT, 

Defendant. 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D 

Department: H 

 

 

Date of Hearing:  April 9, 2019 

Time of Hearing:  10:00 a.m. 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL EXHIBITS TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR 

RECONSIDERATION OF DENIAL OF EVIDENTIARY PROCEEDINGS 

ON PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY AND CHILD 

SUPPORT FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 ORDER ENTERED FEBRUARY 

14, 2019 
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Kevin Adrianzen, by and through his attorney, 

Michael Burton, Esq. of McFarling Law Group, and hereby submits the following 

exhibits to supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
4/8/2019 11:34 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Evidentiary Proceedings on Plaintiff’s Motion to Modify Custody and Child Support 

from September 17, 2018 Order Entered February 14, 2019. 

See attached Exhibit 4 text from Defendant to Plaintiff with explanation of 

minor son’s bruises on arm; Exhibit 5 emails dated March 23, 2019 between parties 

re: minor son’s hygiene issues; Exhibit 6 communications from Defendant to 

Plaintiff for eye appointment scheduled, rescheduled and Defendant’s phone # used 

by eye doctor and CCSD portal; and Exhibit 7 Letter dated April 3, 2019 from minor 

son’s principal re: individualized reading plan needed 

DATED this 8th day of April, 2019. 

MCFARLING LAW GROUP 

 

/s/ Michael Burton 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

Nevada Bar Number 14351 

6230 W. Desert Inn Road 

Las Vegas, NV 89146 

(702) 565-4335  

Attorney for Plaintiff, 

Kevin Adrianzen 

 

  



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

The undersigned, an employee of McFarling Law Group, hereby certifies that 

on this 8th day of April, 2019, served a true and correct copy of Supplemental 

Exhibits To Plaintiff’s Motion For Reconsideration of Denial of Evidentiary 

Proceedings on Plaintiff’s Motion to Modify Custody and Child Support from 

September 17, 2018 Order Entered February 14, 2019: 

 __X___ via mandatory electronic service by using the Eighth Judicial 

District Court’s E-file and E-service System to the following: 

Melvin Grimes, Esq. 

melg@grimes-law.com 

 

  

 

/s/ Crystal Beville 

Crystal Beville 
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NEO 
MELVIN R. GRIMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No: 12972 
Melg@grimes-law.com  
THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 
8540 S. Eastern Avenue Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
p: (702) 347-4357 
f: (702) 224-2160 
Attorney for Defendant 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

*********** 
 
KEVIN DANIELADRIANZEN, 
                            Plaintiff 
 
V. 
 

 
CASE NO.:  D-13-489542-D 
 
DEPT:         H 
 

 
PAIGE ELIZABETH PETIT,  
                            Defendant                    NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER 

 

 
 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT an Order was entered in the above-entitled 

matter on the 28th  day of May, 2019, a copy of which is attached hereto.  

 DATED this 28th     day of May, 2019.  

THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 

 

__/s/ Melvin R. Grimes____ 
MELVIN R GRIMES, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 12972 
8540 S. Eastern Avenue Suite 100  
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
Tel: (702) 347-4357 
Attorney for Defendant 
 

 

Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
5/28/2019 11:27 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

mailto:Kristina@WellerEsq.com
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

 Pursuant to NRCP 5(b). I certify that I am an employee of The Grimes Law 

Office and that on the 28th day of May, 2019, I caused the foregoing document, 

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER, to be served as follows: 

 

[X] Pursuant to EDCR 8.05(a), EDCR 8.05(f), NRCP 5(b)(2)(D) and 

Administrative Order 14-2 captioned "In the Administrative Matter of 

Mandatory Electronic Service in the Eighth Judicial District," by mandatory 

electronic service through the Eighth Judicial District Court's electronic 

filing system; 

 

[] By placing the same to be deposited for mailing in the United States Mail, in 

a sealed envelope with appropriate first class postage attached. 

 

Michael Burton, Esq. 

eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com 

Attorney for Plaintiff 

 

 

DATED this 28th  day of  May, 2019. 

 

 /s/ Katherine Mendoza 

An Employee of THE GRIMES LAW OFFICE 
 

mailto:eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com


Case Number: D-13-489542-D

Electronically Filed
5/28/2019 11:04 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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